Ancestor Chart 17 Aug 1896
— Frederick + SCHUBERT (abt 1817-26 Sep 1891)
Hermann C + SCHUBERT (27 Nov 1850-14 Jul 1939)
_I L— Fredericka + FRICK (-aft 26 Sep 1891)
Karl + SCHUBERT (abt 1874-1951)
_l L Fredericka + [ SCHUBERT ] (alt 1853-aft 1880)
—= Franklyn + SCHUBERT (-)
Richard Franz + SCHUBERT (1 Sep 1929-)
(— George H + ESRY (bl 1840-)
Richard A + ESRY (abt 1867-)
—I l— Lisa+ COLEMAN (abt 1842-)
Marguerite + ESRY (sht 1900-)
_l — Thomas + JACKSON (1842-)
Ella Jane + JACKSON (1869-)

— William + PHELPS (1599-14 Jul 1667)
Timothy + PHELPS (1 Sep 1639-1719)
hl L— Mary + DOVER (-)
Sammel + PHELPS (29 Jan 1675-bef 1749)
_.! — Edward + GRISWOLD (-)
Mary + GRISWOLD (1644-)
— Samual + PHELPS (bet 5 Apr 1708 and 1710-14/17 Aug 1754)
_| — James + ENO (-}
Abigail + ENO (1 Mar 1686-25 Dec 1749)
L— Abigail + BISSELL (-)
— Samuel + PHELPS (15 Sep 1736-28 Jul 1805)
(— Wiltizm + PHELPS (1599-14 Jul 1667)
‘Timothy + PHELPS (1 Sep 1639-1719)
_I. L— Mary + DOVER (-)
— Willism + PHELPS (4 Feb 1668/69-1733)
_| — Edward + GRISWOLD (+)
Mary + GRISWOLD (1644-)
— Ruth +PHELPS (23 Jen 1713-)
(— Thomas + BARBER (161¥/14-11 Sep 1662)
Samuel + BARBER (abt Sep 1648-12 Mar 1708/9)
_| L— Jene + [ BARBER ] (abt 1620-10 Sep 1662)
L Ruth + BARBER (24 Jul 1683-2 Aug 1747)
— John + DRAKE (-)
Ruth + DRAKE (1 Dec 1657-13 Nov 1731)
L— Hannah + MOORE (-)
— Uri + PHELPS (5 Jul 1765-25 Ang 1830)
(— Thomas + BARBER (1613/14-11 Sep 1662)
Sempel + BARBER (abt Sep 1648-12 Mar 1708/9)
*I L— Jane + [ BARBER ] (2bt 1620-10 Sep 1662)
Joseph + BARBER (1681-1748)
r— John + DRAKE (-)
Ruth + DRAKE {1 Dac 1657-13 Nov 1731)
L Hannah + MOORE (-)
_\ Semuel + BARBER (6 Aug 1710-29 Mar 1797)

— Danist + LOOMIS (-)
Mery +LOOMIS (15 Jan 1690-7 May 1786)
L— Mary + ELLSWORTH (-)
L Ann + BARBER (2 Mar 1736-24 May 1817)
— Danisl + GILLETT (-)
Ann + GILLETT (12 Mar 1710/11-Mar 1736)
L— Mary + ENO (-)
——- Sheldon + PHELPS (24 Mar 1799-)
r— Abrahem + FULFORD (-}
j— Gershom + FULFORD (aht 1707-)
— Titug + FULFORD (25 Nov 1733-)

_! — John + WELTON (-18 Jun 1726)

— Stephen + WELTON (-bef Mar 1727)

_l — Thomas + UPSON (abt 1614-19 Jul 1655)
Mary + UPSON (est betw 1640 and 1642-)

Abigsil + WELTON (abt 1710-)
— William + GAYLORD (abt 1585-20 Jul 1673)
Walter + GAYLORD (1626-9 Aug 1689)

_I L. Elizabeth + | GAYLORD ] (-20 um 1657)
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Mary + GAYLORD (abt 1685-18 Jul 1709)
L— Sarsh + STANLEY (-12 Feb 1711/12)
Abiggil + FULFORD (21 Apr 1761-Ang 1834)
r— John + ARNOLD (abt 1585-Dec 1664)
Dariel + ARNOLD (1640-10 May 1691/92)
_l L— Suganna+ [ ARNOLD ] (-)
Nethaniel + ARNOLD (1674/75-13 Sep 1735)
r— Jemes + OSBORNE (-)
Elizabeth + OSBORNE (27 May 1647-3 Feb 1740/41)
Nathaniel + ARNOLD (sbt 1703/4-12 May 1777)
7— Thomss +RICHARDS (-)
r— Obadish + RICHARDS (abt 1648-)
Elizgheth + RICHARDS (Jul 1675-23 May 1750)
r— John + ANDREWS (-)
Hannsh + ANDREWS (bt 1650-)
L— Mary + [ ANDREWS ] (abt 1622-)
— Susmnna + ARNOLD (7 Apr 1740-5 Jul 1798)
L— Elizabeth + RICHESON (5 Oct 1704-11 Oct 1773)

Sheldon Erastus + PHELPS (16 Dec 1821-)
_I — Mary + ADAMS (abt 1800-)
— Josephine M + PHELPS (abt 1845-)

r— Richard + OLMSTED (abt 1612-aft 5 Sep 1684)
r— John + OLMSTED (sbt 1649-1704)
Deniel + OLMSTED (1682-)
— Thomss + BENEDICT (1617-)
Mary +BENEDICT (abt 1650-ebt 1688)
L— Mary + BRIDGEHAM (-)
Ambrose + OLMSTED (9 May 1719-6 Apr 1792)
j — Joseph + KETCHUM (-)
Hannsth + KETCHUM (-)
Jeremish + OLMSTED (abl 1756-26 Sep 1816)
— William + COMSTOCK (abt 1585-abt 1673)
r— Christopher + COMSTOCK (bet 1633 and 1635-28 Dec 1702)
[— Moses + COMSTOCK (4 May 1685-18 Jan 1766)
r — Richard + PLATT (abt 1604-abt Jan 1684/85)
Hannsh + PLATT (abt 1643-aft 28 Dec 1702)
L— Mery + WOOD (abt 1605-Mar 1675/76)
~— Martha + COMSTOCK (abt 1723-4 Ang 1814)
r— John + BRINSMADE (1617-1673)
— Daniel + BRINSMADE (abt 1644-Oct 1702)
r— Thomas + CARTER (-)
Mary + CARTER (-)
“— Abigail + BRINSMADE (bt 1691-16 Nov 1766)
— Martin + KELLOGG (1595-1671)
Daniel + KELLOGG (1630-1688)
_.I L— Prudence + BIRD (-bef 20 May 1671)
“— Sarah + KELLOGG (Feb 1659/60-)
r— John + BOUTON (abt 1615-bef 1647)
Bridget + BOUTON (abt 1642-1689)
L Alice [ BOUTON ] (abt 1610-abt Dec 1680)

_.I Horace Street + OLMSTED (7 May 1796-)

+ STREET (-abt 1792)

~— Jane M + OLMSTED (27 Feb 1827}

L— Mary + BROWN (-)

Prepared by:

R. G. Windsor Spellman
281 Ridge Road, 2-B
Wethersfield, CT 06109
(860) 721-8141
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FIRST GENERATION

1. Richard Franz + SCHUBERT was bom on 1 Sep 1929in Cleveland, Ohio. Dick married at the Gospel Church,
Cleveland, Ohio, 6 Feb 1953, JUANITA EDITH McCULLOUGH, b Cleveland Heights, Ohio, 24 Mar 1929, dau John Andrew
McCullough & Gladys Winifred Spellman (qv). Dick formerly worked as a systems analyst for the B F Goodrich Co, Juanita
as organist for many years at Bay Presbyterian Church, Bay Village, Ohio, and currently (1996) in the same position at Rocky
River Presbyterian Church, Rocky River. From about 1967 till 1994, when Dick retired, they lived at 27916 West Oakland
Road, Bay Village; they have now built a distinctive new home in Hinckley, Ohio, on land through which pass the headwaters
of Rocky River. The new home is characterised by its Indian motif,

SECOND GENERATION

LR £ LAL

2. Franklyn + SCHUBERT was bom in Cleveland, Ohio. He was martied to Marguerite + ESRY in 1928.

3. Margucrite + ESRY was bom about 1900

THIRD GENERATION

4. Karl + SCHUBERT was bom about 1874 in Cleveland ? Ohio. Called "Charles” in 1830 Census whege he, ae 6, and sister
Emma, ae 3, are listed in family of Herman "Shubert" end his wife Fredericka. He died in 195] in Cleveland, Ohio,

6. Richard A + ESRY was bom about 1867 in Ohio. He was maried to Ella Jane + JACKSON.

7. Ella Jane + JACKSON was borm in 1869 in Richfield Twp, Summit County, Chio.

FOURTH GENERATION

8. Hermann C+ SCHUBERT was boin on 27 Nov 1850 in Berlin, Germany. He died on 14 Jul 1939 in Cleveland, Ohio.
Death certificate gives date and place of both birth and death, age at death (88 years, 7 mos, and 17 days), and names of
parents, attested to by widow, Mattie C Schubert, probably his second wife. It calls him an "artist* and to the question as to
the "total time (years) spent in this occupation,” it says "Life." Residence at time of death was at 1263 West Blvd, Cleveland,
Ohio, and burial took place 17 July, 1939, in Woodland Cemetery under auspices of Emil Klanke and the Klanke Funeral
Parlors.

The 1880 Federal Census of Ohio (Roll #1005, p 357D) places him in Cleveland Ward 5 at 380 St Clair Street, as follows
(269-252):
Shubert [sic], Herman 31 Fresco artist b Prussia (his parents also b Prussia)

Fredericka 27 wife b Prussia (her parents also b Prussia)
Charles 6 son bOhioc (parents bomn Prussia)
Emma 3 dau bChio (perents bom Prussia)

The 1880 Census also gives two others, either or both of whom may have been Hermann's brothers:

Schubert, Franz 30 Fresco painter b Mecklenburg (his parents also b Mecklenburg)
Christina 28 wife,kpgho b Prussia (her parents also b Prussia)
Frank 1 son b Ohio (father b Mecklenburg, mother b Prussia)
[This family on Roll #1006, p 227D, is in Cleveland Ward 7 at 415 Aaron Street
and listed at 231-266.]

Schubert, Charles 38 Works in boiler shop b Prussia (his parents also b Prussia)
[no wife listed]
Chares 2 son b Ohio (parents both bom Prussia)
[This family on Roll #1008, p 4784, is in Cleveland Ward 13 at 27 Buhrer Avenue

J
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and listed at 670-784.]

Schubert residences found in Cleveland city directories:

I have found that directories offer excellent clues to masmw groupings and relationships; they are, besides, often fascinating for
what they reveal. In the early 1970s I spent hours vﬂ.ﬁnﬁ them for my Schubert research. Every year for which there was a
directory was searched, from 1932 back as far as 1837. Entries are nearly complete except as noted, the more immediately
televant of which I have marked with an asterisk (*):

Summary of significant listings for Herman C Schubert:

1938 * Schubert, Herman C (Mattie C), h 1263 West Blvd

1932 * Schubert, Herman C (Mary C), h 1263 West Blvd

1928 * Schubert, Herman C (decorator), h 1263 West Blvd

1922 * Schubert, Herman C (Schubert Fresco Co), h 1263 West Blvd
1918 * Schubert, Herman C (Schubert Fresco Co), r 1268 West Blvd
1912 * Schubert, Herman C, decorator, 1268 West Blvd

1908 * Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, 1 1455 W .98th St NW

1902 * Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, r 1892 Detroit

1898 * Schubert, Hermean C, frescoer, r 1892 Detroit

All possibly relevant Schubert entries from 1922 back:

1922 Schubert, Frederick C, engraver, h 10826 Tacoma
Schubert, Fred, machinist, 2210 W.11th
Schubert, Frederick O, carp. contr, 993 Thomhill dr, h do
* Schubert Fresco Co, The (Herman C & Karl W Schubert)
Frescoing of Churches & Public Bldgs, 1263 West Blvd
* Schubert, Herman C (Schubert Fresco Co) h 1263 West Blvd
* Schubert, Karl W, h 9311 Madison
1918 [No Fredericks, no Kerl, but Carl:]
* Schubert, Carl W (Schubert Fresco Co} F 2052 W.95th
* Schubert, Herman C (Schubert Fresco Co) h 1268 West Blvd
1912 Schubert, Fred, mach. opr. 3848 Payne Ave NE
Schubert, Fred O, carp, 4292 Mapladale SW
* Schubert, Herman C, decorator, 1268 West Blvd
* Schubert, Karl W, painter, 2052 W.95th
Schubert Co. (O V & C T Schubert) music lithogrs, 2941 Detroit Ave NW
Schubert, Charles T, r No Dover, O.
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, 2941 Detroit Ave NW, r The Hollenden
1908 Schubert, Orlando V (Schubert Co), r 2903 Walton
Schubert, Charles T (Schubert Co), r 2903 Walton
Schubert Co (C T & O V Schubert, music pubrs), 2939 Detroit Ave NW
Schubert, Frederick O, carp contr, 5800 Whittier NE
Schubert, Gustave, knitter, 3607 Walton SW
Schubert, Henman, r 8616 Quincy SE
* Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, r 1455 W.98th StNW
1902 * Schubert, Carl W, decorator, r 2064 Clark av
Schubert, Charles T (Schubert Music Co), r 125 Walton av
* Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, r 1892 Detroit
Schubert, Mary, wid Balthasar, r 125 Walton av
Schubert Music Co (C T & O V Schubert), music pubrs, 367 Detroit
Schubert, Orlando V (Schubert Music Co), r 125 Walton ev
Schuberth, Herman, ret'd, r 678 Quincy
1898 Schubert, Charles F (Century Lithograph Co), 367% Detroit, r 125 Walton
* Schubert, Fredericka, Mrs, r 401 Crange
* Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, r 1892 Detroit
* Schubert, Karl, frescoer, r 1892 Detroit
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Schubert, Mary, widow, 125 Walton
Schubert, Wm & Son (Wm & Wm J), carp contr, 2802% Euclid
1897/8 Schubert, Charles F (Cent Lith Co), 36744 Detroit, r 125 Walton
“ Schubert, Carl W, frescoer, r 1558 Superior
* Schubert, Frank C, painter, r 73 Robinson av
* Schubert, Fredericka, widow, r 73 Robinson av
* Schubert, Herman C, frescoer, 1558 mcﬁ&wn 1 same
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Walton
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, r 125 Walton
1866 * Schubert, Carl W, fiescoer, r 1558 Superior
Schubert, Charles T, lithgr, r 125 Walton
* Schubert, Frank C, painter, r 73 Robinson
* Schubert, Fredericka, widow, 171 Dana
* Schubert, Herman C, frasco artist, 1558 Superior, 1 same
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Walton
Schubert, Orlando V, astist, 71 City Hall, r 125 Walton
[1895 - same as 1896 except: * Schubert, Frank C, decorator, r 171 Dana]
1894 * Schubert, Carl W, frescoer, r 584 St Clair
Schubert, Charles T, lith, r 125 Walton
* Schubert, Frank, painter, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Herman C, fresco artist, 584 St Clair
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Walton
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, r 125 Walton
1893 Schubert Bros. (Orlando V & Charles T) pub's, 77 City Hell
* Schubert, Carl W, decorator, 1 584 St Cleir
* Schubert, Frenk F, frescoer, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Fredericka, Mrs, r 4 Hickox
* Schubert, Herman C, fresco artist, 584 St Clair
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Welton
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, r 125 Walton
1892 Schubert Bros. (Orlando V & Charles T) pub's, 2 § Water
* Schubert, Frank F, artist, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Fredericka, wid Frederick, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Herman C, fresco artist, 584 St Clair
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Walton
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, r 125 Walton
1891 Schubert Bros. (Orlando V & Charles T) pub's, 2 § Water
* Schubert, Frank F, artist, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Frederick, carp, r 140 Dana
» Schubert, Heriman C, fresco artist, 584 St Clair
Schubert, Mary, widow B B, r 125 Walton
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, r 125 Walton
1890 * Schubert, Frank F, artist, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Frederick, retired, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist, 380 St Clair
1888 Schubert, B B, removed to Detroit, Mich.
* Schubert, Frank F, artist, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Frederick, retired, r 140 Dana
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist, 380 St Clair
1887  (ell Schubert listings for this year)
Schubert, Charles F, barber, bds 1094 Broadway [also in later directories]
Schubert, Emmanuel, mach, r 384 Hamilton [also in later directories]
* Schubert, Franz, frescoer, 1 1162 Payne av
* Schubert, Frederick, r 1162 Payne av
Schubert, Gustav, cigar mff, 118 Gauge {also in later directories]
* Schubert, Herman, fresco artist, 380 St Clair
Schubert, John A, carriage maker, r 856 Willson av [also in later directories]
Schubert, Orlando V & Charles T, removed to Canton, O.
1886  [selected entries only]
* Schubert, Frank, painter, r 415 Aaron
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Schubert, Franz, barber, bds 1094 Broadway
* Schubert, Frederick, r 394 Asron
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist & decorator, off m 7, 52 Pub Sq, r 380 St Clair
1885  [complete listing for this year]
Schubert, B B, cigars & tob, 367 Detroit
Schubert, Emmanuel, lab, bds 750 St Clair
Schubert, Emst, lab, bds 516 St Clair
* Schubert, Franz, painter, r 415 Aaron
Schubert, Gustav, cigar mfgr, 141 Higgins
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist & decorator, No. 380 St Clair St. (advertisment)
1884  [complete listing for this year]
Schubert, B B, cigars, 367 Detroit
Schubert, Emst, lab, bds 9 Glass av
* Schubert, Francis, fresco painter, r 415 Aaron
* Schubert, Frederick, r 380 St Clair
9 Schubert, Frederick, r 428 Giddings av [son of preceding Frederick?]
Schubert, Gustav, cigarmaker, 1305 Lorain
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist, 380 St Clair
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, bds 369 Detroit
1883 Schubert, B B, cigars, 764 Detroit
Schubert, Charles T, engraver, r 766 Detroit
Scbubert, Ernst, lab, bds 288 Oregon
* Schubert, Frank, painter, r 415 Aaron
* Schubert, Frederick, carp, r 532 St Clair
* Schubert, Hermann, fresco artist & ornamental painter, 380 St Clair
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, room 8, 171 Superior, r 766 Detroit
[1882 - not available]
1881 Schubert, Balthazar B, 230-232 Detroit
Schubert, Charles, engraver, W J Morgan & Co, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Franz, fresco painter, r 401 Aaron
* Schubert, Herman, fresco painter, 380 St Clair
Scbubert, Orlando V, marine painter, rm 23, 303 Euclid, r 232 Detroit
[1880 - same as 1881}
1879 - Schubert, Balthazar B, 230-232 Detroit
Schubert, Charles, engraver, W J Morgan & Co, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Francis, fresco painter, r 197 Aaron
* Schubert, Herman, frescoer, r 293 Payne av
Schubert, Oriando V, artist, rm 67, Atwater Bldg, r 232 Detroit
1878 - Schubert, Balthazar B, 230-232 Detroit
Schubert, Charles, engraver, W ] Morgan & Co, 1 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Francis, fiesco painter, r 197 Aaron
* Schubert, Fred, carptr, r 337 Payne av
* Schubert, Herman, frescoer, r 293 Payne av
Schubert, John, lab, r 10 Rockert
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, m 67, Atwater Bldg, r 232 Detroit
1877-8 Schubert, Balthazar B, 230-232 Detroit
Schubert, Charles, engraver, W J Morgan & Co, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Francis, fresco painter, r 197 Aaron
* Schubert, Fred, carptr, r 337 Payne av
* Schubert, F, artist, Kemmer Oil Fresco Co [no address given; same as Fred?]
* Schubert, Herman, frescoer, r 293 Payne av
Schubert, Orlando V, artist, m 67 Atwater Bldg, r 232 Detroit
1876-7 Schubert, B B, cigars, 230 Detyoit, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Herman, fresco peinter, r 124 Hamilton
Schubert, Paul, r 633 Clark
Schubert, Orlando V, lith, 158 Superior, r 232 Detroit
1875-6 Schubert, B B, cigars, 230 Detroit, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, Frank, r 200 Garden
* Schubert, Frederick, boarding house, 290 Garden
Schubert-Collister & Co (O V Schubert, C W Collister,
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and ), lith's and engravers, 219 Superior
Schubert, O V, r 232 Detroit
Schubert, Paul, miller, r 633 Clark
1874-5 Schubert, Balthasar B, cigars, 230 Detroit, r 232 Detroit
* Schubert, H, fresco painting & kalsomining, 291 St Clair, r 24 Oregon
Schubert, Orlando, artist, bds 232 Detroit
1873 - [only this one Schubert entry] ,
Schubert, B D [sic], tobacco, 230 Detroit, r 232 Detroit
1872-3 * Schubert, Frank, fresco painter, r 15 Waring [possibly son or bro of Fred’k?]
* Schubert, Fraderick, carpenter, r 15 Waring
* Schubert, Herman, fresco peinter, r 15 Waring [son of Frederick, above]
Schubert, Paul, miller, I Sturtevant & Co, bds 20 Kennard
Schubert, P B [sic], cigars, 230 Detroit, r 232 Detroit
1871-2 Schubert, George, lab, bds 38 Ash
Schubert, O H, portrait painter, r 232 Detroit
Schubert, Paul, lab, bds 21 Ash
* Shobart, Fred, carp, h 15 Waring
1870-1 Schubert, B B, grocer, 230 Detroit
Schubert, George, painter, b 91 River
1869-70 * Shubert, Frank, carp, h 15 Waring
1868-9 * Schubert, Frank, b 64 Perry
Schubert, John, grocer, 230 & 232 Detroit
Schubert, Paul, lab, h West
* Schubirt [sic], Fred, carp, h 15 Waring
1865-6 * Shubbard, Fred, carp, h 179 Hamilton
1863 Shubberd, Balt B, music tchr, r 232 Detroit
1861 Shubert, Balt. B., music tchr, r 232 Detroit
1857 Schubert, Benjamin, music tchr, h 85 Detroit
1856 Shubert, Peter, cigar maker, h 16 Erie
Shubert, Theodore, carp, h 33 Wilson
1853 Schubert, B, musician, Erie heed Rockwell St
1848-9 Shubert, B, grocer, b 35 Superior St w
[No relevant entries before this date from 1837)

He was married to Fredericka + [ SCHUBERT ] about 1873.
9. Fredericka + [ SCHUBERT ] was bom about 1853 in Prussia. She died after 1880.

12. George H+ ESRY was bom about 1840 in England. Cleveland, Ward 10, Cuyahoga Co, Ohio, 1880 Census, Roll #1007,

p 112C, listed at

17 Reservoir Street:

616-695 Born  Motherb  Fatherb

Esty, George H 40 Plasterer [be 1840] England England England
Elize 38 wife,kpgho [bc1842] Canada Scotland  Scotland
Wm G [H,Y?] 15 son, file worker [bc 1865] Ohio England Canada
Richard A 13 son [bc1867) Ohio  England Canada
Eva 12 dau, at school [bc 1868] ©Ohic  England Canada
Grace 10 dau, at school [bec 1870) Ohic  Englend Canada
George 8 son, atschool {bc1872] Ohio  England Canada
Dolly 6 dan, at school [bc 1874] Ohio  England Canada
Gertrude 4 dan [bc1876] Ohio  England Canada
Blanche 1 dau [bc1879] Ohio  England Canada

He was married to Lisa -+ COLEMAN abont 1862.

13. Lisa+ COLEMAN was born about 1842 in Canada. Was aged 38 according to 1880 Census, Cleveland, Ward 10, Ohio,
Roll #1007, p 112C. [ was told by Marguerite (Esry) Schubert in the late 1960s that her grandmother, "Lisa Coleman,” was

I~
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Insh. According to this 1880 census schedule, "Elisa" was born in Canada but both her parents are recorded as being born in
Scotland. Marguerite (Esry) Schubert informed me Lisa Coleman "was Irish.” 1880 Census has her bom in Canada and her
father and mother both born in Scotland, not Ireland (see note for George H Esry). ..RGWS.

14. Thomas + JACKSON was born in 1842 in England. Born in England according to 1870 Census, in which he is described
as then ae 28 and living at Richfield Township in Summit County, Chio. In 1880 Census, Thomas's family is shown thus:

Jackson, Thomas 38 Blacksmith b England (both parents also b England)
Josephine 35 wife, kpghouse b Ohio (parents’ birthplace unknown)

PPemy 13 son b Ohio (father b Eng, mother b Ohio)
JElla 11 dau b Ohio (father b Eng, mother b Ohio)
Ray 5 son b Ohio (father b Eng, mother b Chio)

{Josephine Phelps' family appears on next page, 3718.]
By way of comparison, the 1870 Census lists this farnily in the same township, p 377, as:

131-185 Jackson, Thomas 28 Blacksmith $1400 $200 b England

Josephine 25 Keeping house b Chio
PemyP 8 b Chio
EllaJ 1 b Ohio

[Ella ¥ Jackson would marry Richard A Esry, qv.]

He was married to Josephine M + PHELPS on 3 Apr 1866 in Summit County, Ohio. A note in the IGI gives the marriage of
Thomas Jeckson and Josephine M Phelps, in Summit County, Ohio, 3 April 1866.

15. Josephine M + PHELPS was born about 1845 in Ohio. Federal Census data for Ohio, Summit Co, Richfield Twp, gives
the following information:

1860 - Roll #1039, p 174;

1450-1387 Sheldon Phillips 38 Blacksmith $5000 $1000 b CT

Jane 34 bNY
Josephine 15 b OH
Ellen 12 b OH
Mary 1 b OH
1870:
219-225 Phelps, Sheldon E 48 Blacksmith $7000 $1800 b CT
Jane 44 Keeping honse bNY
Alice 10 b OH
Henry 7 b OH
Rensom 4 b OH
Nellie 2 b OH

1880 - Roll #1069, p 371B:

144-155 Phelps, E Sheldon 58 Blacksmith CTCTCT
Jane 54 wife NY CT CT
Henry 18 son OH CT NY
Ransom 15 son OH CT NY
Nellie 12 dau OH CT NY

(Josephine should not be confused with the IGI's Josephine Phelps, b Medina County, Ohio, 1853, dau "Baseford” S Phelps &

Caroline Brownl RGWS.)

o
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FIFTH GENERATION

16. Frederick + SCHUBERT was bom about 1817 in Prussia. Birth date based on death certificate, 1891, which states he
was then 73 years of age. Have note saying he was bom 30 Nov 1817, but find no source for this, RGWS. He died on 26 Sep
1891 in Cleveland, Ohio. Death certificate says aged 73 and married at the time, living at 140 Dana Street in Cleveland. Buried
at Woodland Cemetery. He was married to Fredericka + FRICK about 1840.

17. Fredericka+ FRICK died after 26 Sep 189]1. According to her husband's death certificate, she was living at the time and
in Cleveland. She was bormn in Prussia.

30. Sheldon Erastus+ PHELPS was bom on 16 Dec 1821 in Harwinton, Connecticut. Exact date and place of birth found ir
IGI at LDS Family History Center, Bloomfield, Ct, 13 Apr 1996. Sheldon Phelps is listed in the 1860, 1870, and 1880 censuses
as residing in the same Ohio town - Richfield, in Summit County - as noted below. It was about 1970 that I researched the
1870 census, it was not until April 1996 that I had access to the 1860 and 1880 census schedules listing this family.

1860 - Roll #1039, p 174, 1450-1387:
SHELDON PHILLIPS 38 {bc1822] blacksmith 5000 1000 b Connecticut

Jane Phillips 34 [bc 1826) b New York
Josephine Phillips 15 [be 1845]) b Ohio
Ellen Phillips 12 [bc 1848] b Chio
Mary Phillips 1 [be 1859] b Ohio
Henry Kilheffer 22 blacksmith b Ohio

{Henry Kilheffer may or may not have been a family member,)

1870-Roll#___,p___,219-225:
PHELPS, SHELDON E 48 {bc 1822] blacksmith 7000-1800 b Connecticut

Jane 44 [bc 1826) keeping house b New York
Alice 10 [be 1860) b Ohio
Henry 7 [be 1863] b Ohio
Ransom 4 [bc 1866] b Ohio
Nellie 2 [be 1868] b Chio
1880 - Roll #1069, p 371B, 144-155 Bom Fatherbom Mother bomn
PHELPS, E SHELDON 58 [bc 1822]) blacksmith CT CT cr
Jane 54 [bc 1826] wife NY CT CT
Henry 18 [bc 1862] son OH CT NY
Ransom 15 [be 1865] son OH CT NY
Nellie 12 [bc 1868] dau OH CT NY

In IG! at LDS Family History Center, Bloomfield, Ct, on 13 Apr 1996, found Sheldon's exact date and place of birth, 16 Dec
1821, at Harwinton, Litchfield Co, Ct, with e relative's name given as Hyram Smith Phelps. His marriage to "Jane M Olmsted*
is given as in Sumnmit Co, Ohio, on 3 Apr 1844,

Judge Oliver Seymour Phelps and Andrew T Servin's “The Phelps Family of America,” Pitisfield, MA, 1899, a two-volume
work ] found at the Connecticut State Library, traces Sheldon’s ancestry back eight generations to William Phelps (1599-1672),
an early setiler of Windsor, Connecticut. I have relied on this as reasonably accurate for all the Phelps "name line" ancestors
entered in this "Family Origins” program. The entry for Sheldon (the last of his line to be entered in the Phelps & Servin book)
runs as follows:

"8105. Sheldon Erastus Phelps, b Harwinton, Ct., 16 Dec 1821, m . Mr. Phelps settled in Richland, Ohio. Had
three children.” [With the help of the Census data above we think the number of children likely to have been more correctly
seven or more.}

He was married to Jane M + OLMSTED on 3 Apr 1844 in Summit County, Chio.

31. Jane M + OLMSTED was bom on 27 Feb 1827 in Monroe Co, NY. 1860 Census of Ohio, Summit Co, Richfield Twp,
shows Jane as bom in New York State, but both her parents having been born in Connecticut. In the IGI today, 13 Apr 1996,
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found her exact date of birth, also Monroe as New York State county where she was bom, plus the names of her parents|

SIXTH GENERATION

60. Sheldon + PHELPS was bom on 24 Mar 1799 in Harwinton, Connecticut, The Phelps genealogy is obviously in error as
to dates for this Sheldon Phelps, the entry stating (p 783) that he, b Harwinton, 24 Mar 1799, m 1 Feb 1826, Mary Adams; that
he died Harwinton, 2 Feb 1824, two years before his marriage! This will have to be researched. In the work just mentioned,
Sheldon's children are shown es;

i. SHELDON ERASTUS, b Harwinton, Ct, 16 Dec 1821
iL. Malvina, b Harwinton, 26 Jan 1824; m James Drake of Cleveland, Ohio

He was merried to Mary + ADAMS est 1 Feb 1820 in Harwinton, Connecticut,

61. Mary+ ADAMS was born about 1800. The IGI for NY have a Mary Adams, b Whitehall, Washington Co, 20 Oct 1802,
no parentage given or identification with the Mary Adams who m Harwinton, Ct, ¢ 1820, Sheldon Phelps.

62, Horace Street-+ OLMSTED was bom on 7 May 1796 in Monroe Co, NY. 1880 Census of Ohio would indicate both
Horace Street Olmsted and his wife Mary Brown were bom in Connecticut, but article in Rochester Union, 1858, would seem
to contradict this, which calls his brother Harry the "oldest inhabitant” of Monroe County, his father Jeremiah having brought
him there in 1794 when Harry was eight. The date of birth supplied for Horace by the Olmsted Family Genesalogy, 1912, is 7
May 1796, but this may be incorrect, as it follows immediately the name of his wife Mary Brown. If, on the other hand, this is
the correct date, then Horace was born two years after his parents removed to New York State. However, his brother Harry
could well have been the "cldest inhabitant" of Monroe County by 1858, depending upon when Horace died or moved away!
My conjecture is that the yeer of birth may more likely be about 1788. RGWS. The Olmsted Family Genealogy says of
Horace Street Olmsted only that he was born 7 May 1796 (but see birth note), that he married Mary Brown, and that he had the
following nine children, all presumably b Monroe County, NY:

i. Mary, b 13 Mar 1818, d as infant, 4 Apr 1818
ii. Lucinde, b 29 Mar 1819, d 31 Mar 1880; m Jesse Ranney, of Humberstone, Canada
ifi. Ploorna, b 1 Mar 1822, m James Ranney, of Port Cobum, Canada
iv. Mehitabel, b 4 Nov 1824, d 19 Apr 1842
v. JANE, b 27 Feb 1827, m Thomas T [Jackson)
vi. Horace, b 2 Dec 1829, m Amy Jane Buckner
vii. George Washington
viil. Frances Elizabeth, b 19 Aug 1835
ix, Charlotte Ann, b 30 Aug 1838

He was married to Mary + BROWN about 1817 in Monroe Co, NY.

63. Mary + BROWN was born in Connecticut.

SEVENTH GENERATION

120. Uri+ PHELPS was bom on 5 Jul 1765 in Harwinton, Connecticut. He died on 25 Aug 1830 in Harwinton, Connecticut.
Uri Phelp's children, according to the Phelps Genealogy, 1899, were as follows, all born in Harwinton, Ct.:

i. Eliza, b 15 May 1786; m Burr Phelps
il. Susan, b 11 Aug 1788; m Elihu Olmsted
tii. Sally, b 11 Jen 1791,d 'y, 19 Apr 1794
iv. Uri Tracy, b 17 Apr 1793; m Almira
v. Nabby, b 13 May 1795; m 29 Jan 1816, George Merrill, of New Hartford, Ct
vi. SHELDON, b 24 Mar 1799; m Mary Adams
vii. Ransom, b 6 May 1800; m Laura Plant
viil. Adin, b ! July 1805; m Mariette Phelps
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He was married to Abigail + FULFORD on 29 Jul 1784,

121. Abigail + FULFORD was born on 21 Apr 1761 in Watertown, Connecticut. Born at Watertown, state some sources,
but the Waterbury vital records list Abigeil's birth without qualification. She died in Aug 1834 in Harwinton, Connecticut.

f
124. Jeremiah + OLMSTED was bom about 1756 in Ridgefield, Connecticut. He died on 26 Sep 1816 in Hanford's
Landing, Monroe Co, NY. Ref The Olmsted Family Genealogy, 1912, p 212:

Jeremiah Olmsted, b [prob Ridgefield, Ct] ¢ 1756, d Hanford's Landing, Monroe Co, NY; m ¢ 1785, Mrs (Street)
Dading. “He moved to & farm on the Genesee River, Monroe County, owned by his brother-in-law Sarnuel Street of Niagara
Fells, Canada West, soon after 1790. Of the family and those employed upon the farm, ten persons died the first year, Mrs
Olmsted among them. In 1798 or 1799 he moved down the river and occupied a hut on the present site of Rochester, NY.
This was the first blow struck in the way of improvement other than that at 'Allen's Mill' on the present site of Rochester. He
remeined there one year and then went upon the 'Ridge’. He was Collector of Taxes for Northampton in 1799, In 1816 he
moved to Hanford's Landing near the present city of Rochester and died there." Children:

i. Harry, b Ridgefield ? Ct, 1786, d Greece 7 Monroe Co, NY, 15 Nov 1863; m 1811, Clarissa Hurd; was a postmaster and
served in the War of 1812; 12 children
ii. HORACE STREET, b Monroe Co, NY, 7 May 1796; m Mary Brown
tii. Laura; m Benjamin Bellingham

He was married to + STREET about 1786.

125. +STREET died about 1792 in Monroe Co, NY. Her brother Samuel Street was "of Niagara Falls, Canada West"
about 1790, at which time he also owned a farm on the Genesee River, Monree County, New York. She did not live long
thereafter, being one of the ten persons who lost their lives there during the first year of settlement.

EIGHTH GENERATION

240. Samue!+ PHELPS III was bom on 15 Sep 1736 in Harwinton, Connecticut. He died on 28 Jul 1805 in Harwinton,
Connecticut. Samuel Phelps III, according to the Phelps Genealopy, 1899, was & farmer and served in the Revolutionary War
in Col Humphrey's Regiment, from which he was discharged 30 Dec 1775, He m 17 Oct 1754, Anna Barber, b Harwinton, Ct,
2 Mer 1736, d Harwinton, 24 May 1817, dau Samuel Barber. Their seven children, all b Harwinton, were:

i Samuel, b 20 July 1755; m three times
ii. Hezeldah, b 6 Jan 1758; m
iii. Silas or Giles, b 13 Dec 1759, m
iv. Ira, b 30 May 1763; m
v. URL, b 15 July 1765; m Abigail Tulford
vi. Anna, b 8 Nov 1767, m Reuben Bristol
vil. Evans, b 6 Apr 1777, m Sabra Barber

He was married to Ann + BARBER on 17 Oct 1754 in Harwinton, Connecticut.

241. Ann-+ BARBER was bom on 2 Mar 1736 in Harwinton, Connecticut. She died on 24 Mey 1817 in Harwinton,
Connecticut.

242. Titus+ FULFORD was bom on 25 Nov 1733 in Waterbury, Connecticut. He resided about 1760 in Watertown,
Connecticut. Titus Fulford, b Waterbury, Ct, 25 Nov 1733, son of Gershom & Abigail (Welton) Fulford; m Waterbury, 27 July
1758, Susanna Amold, d Waterbury, 5 July 1798, dau Captain Nichols. There were ten children, all probably born Waterbury:

i. Nogh Arnold, b 29 May 1759
ii. ABIGAIL, b [Watertown ?], Ct, 21 Apr 1761
iii. James, b 12 July 1763
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iv. Leza, b 17 Oct 1765
v. Dinah, b 18 Feb 1768
vi. Sarah, b 20 Mar 1770
vii. Ruth, b 6 Aug 1772
viii. Phebe, b 16 Dec 1774
ix. Nathaniel Amold, b 25 July 1777
x. Lois, b 3 Oct 1783 !

According to the IGI for CT, the name was Tulford or Fulford, and in them I could find only the three children - Abigail,
Dinah, and Sarah - but they offered the clue I needed to find the others, in the VR of Waterbury. There were no entries for
Fulford or Tulford in Watertown but many of the name in Waterbury, s is revealed fom the complete family listing above.

He was married to Susanna + ARNOLD on 27 Jun 1758 in Waterbury, Connecticut,

243. Susanna+ ARNOLD wes born on 7 Apr 1740. Susenna Amold was b 7 Apr 1740 and probably b at Waterbury, Ct, as
about that period, her father Nathaniel's sister Sarah died there, 22 Nov 1736. The location can no doubt be established more
definitely, as her father, his two sisters and one of his brothers are mentioned as "baptised" rather than "bom.* It would seem
that there would therefore be perhaps a church record to that effect. Information for the Amold family taken from John
Wesley Amold, MD, "A Connecticut Amold Memorial,” Long Beach, CA, 1990, pp 47, 49, 52, 58, and 59, used by me at the
Connecticut State Library, Hartford, 24 April 1996. She resided about 1760 in Watertown, Connecticut. She died on 5 Jul
1798 in Waterbury, Connecticut. Waterbury VR For Amold ancestry, see John Wesley Amold, "A Connecticut Amold
Memonial," Long Beach, CA, 1990; pp 58-9, et ante,

Susanna Amold, b Watertown or Waterbury, Ct, 7 Apr 1740, d 5 July 1798; m Waterbury, 27 June 1758, Titus Fulford, b
Waterbury, 25 Nov 1733, s Gershom & Abigail (Welton) Fulford, ten children (see account for Titus Fulford).

248. Ambrose + OLMSTED was born on 9 May 1719 in Ridgefield, Connecticut. He died on 6 Apr 1792 in Ridgefield,
Connecticut. Ref: The Olmsted Family Genealogy, 1912, lists the following children for Ambose & Martha (Comstock)
Olmsted:

i. Abigail, b 5 July 1743; m 5 Feb 1766, John Richards of Ridgefield, Ct

ii. Martha, b 17 Apr 1745; m 23 Jan 1773, Michael Warren

iii. Ambrose

iv. Mary, b 3 Sept 1749, m Nathaniel Richards of Ridgefield

v.Ruth, b 5 Aug 1751, d 16 Mar 1807

vi. Phebe, b 7 Aug 1754, d 23 Jen 1809
vii. JEREMIAH, bc 1756, d 26 Sept 1816; mc 1785, (Street) Darling
viii. Abijah, b 1 Aug 1757, d 8 Feb 1823; m 4 Apr 1783, Miriam Howe

ix. Erastus, b 7 Feb 1766, d Ft Creek, NY, 13 Apr 1752; m Jane Conover

He was married to Martha + COMSTOCK on 9 Jul 1742.

249. Martha + COMSTOCK was born about 1723 in New Canaan Parish, Norwalk, CT. She died on 4 Aug 1814. Ref
Boston Transcript genealogical column of 30 July 1913, #3448,

Martha Comstock who m Ambrose Olmsted was third daughter of Moses (3) Comstock & Abigail Brinsmade (Abigail, dau
Daniel & Sareh (Kellogg) Brinsmade of Norwalk). Moses (3) Comstock was son of Christopher (2) & Hanngh (Platt)
Comstock of Fairfield and Norwalk. Christopher (2) was probably the son of William (1) Comstock and carme with him from
Englend. William resided at Wethersfield, though finally at New London. This, says comespondent, is from the "Comstock
Genealogy,” of those below, probably that of 1907

Vide "History and Genealogy of the Comstock Family," 1949. Cf other editions, including "Descendants of Samuel
Comstock," 1905 (son of William), and "Descendants of William Comstock,” 1907,

Meredith Colket, in "Founders of Early American Families,” Cleveland, Ohio, 1985, notes the following Comstocks:
CHRISTOPHER COMSTOCK, Feirfield, Ct., Norwalk, 1654, d Norwalk, 28 Dec 1702; freeman, innkeeper, "perhaps” son of
William; tag 30:81, Stevens-Miller v.1.

WILLIAM COMSTOCK, Mass., 1635, Wethersfield, Ct, 1641; New London, Ct., 1647; dc 1683; father of Samnuel.
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NINTH GENERATION

480. Lt Samuel + PHELPS II wes bom between 5 Apr 1708 and 1710 in Windsor, Connecticut. He died 14/17 Aug 1754 in
Herwinton, Connecticut. Lt Samuel Phelps, b Windsor, Ct, 5 Apr 1708/10; m(1) 1731, Ruth Phelps, d Harwinton, Ct, dau
William & Ruth (Barber) Phelps, m(2) 21 Oct 1751, Damaris Gilman, b Hartford, Ct, d Harwinton. The Phelps Genealogy,
1899, states that he removed from Windsor afier the birth of the first child, removing to the northwest part of Harwinton,
where he died of consumption, 14-17 Aug 1754, ae 44. His six children, all by his first wife, Ruth, and all bom in Harwinton
with the exception of Joel, were:

L Joel, b Windsor, Ct, 1732, m Jerusha Nash
ii. Ruth, b Harwinton, 6 Feb 1733, d of consumption, 4 Sept 1783; unm
iii. SAMUEL, b 15 Sept 1736; m Anna Barber
iv. Zeruah, b 17 Apr 1739; m Levi Frisbee
v. Thankful, be 1740; m Miller
vi. Abigzil, b 1 Nov 1741; m Elkanah Phelps

He was married to Ruth + PHELPS in 1731.
481. Ruth + PHELPS was bomn on 23 Jan 1713 in Windsor, Connecticut.

482. Samuel + BARBER was bomn on 6 Aug 1710 in Windsor, Connecticut. Donald S Barber, "The Connecticut Barbers”
He died on 29 Mar 1797 in Tyringham, Massachusetts, Donald S Barber, *The Connecticut Barbers," Middlefield, Ct, 1992,
gives these details for Samuel Barber and his family, my own additions added in brackets;

Samuel Barber, b Windsor, Ct, 6 Aug 1710, d Tyringham, MA, 29 Mar 1797, m(1) [c 1735), Ann Gillett, b Windsor, 12 Mar
1710/11, d [Harwinton ? Ct] ¢ Mar 1736, fprobably shortly after giving birth to her first and only child, Ann], dau Danie! &
Mary (Eno) Gillett; m(2) Harwinton, 14 Aug 1738, Comfort Merriman, b Wallingford, Ct, 3 Oct 1720, d Tyringham, 15 Sept
1801, dau Israel & Comfort (Benham) Memiman.

Only child of Samuel & Ann (Gillett) Barber:

ANN, b Harwinton, Ct, 2 Mar 1736, d Harwinton, 24 May 1817, m 17 Oct 1754, Samuel Phelps, b Harwinton, 15 Sept 1736, d
Harwinton, 28 July 1805, son of Lt Semuel & Ruth (Phelps) Phelps

He was married to Ann + GILLETT about 1735.

483. Ann+ GILLETT was bom on 12 Mar 1710/11 in Windsor, Connecticut, She died in Mar 1736 in Harwinton,
Connecticut,

484. Lt Gershom + FULFORD wes bom about 1707, Lt Gershom Fulford, be 1707, s Abrsham; m Waterbury, Ct, 22 Mar
1727, Abigail Welton (or Walton) [Waterbury, VR]. Their children, all b Waterbury were: [Waterbury VR]

i Mary, b 16 Feb 1727/8
ii. Luke, b 1 Apr 1730; m 20 Dec 1752, Hannsh Bams, dau Samuel
iii. TITUS, b 25 Nov 1733, m Waterbury, 27 July 1758, Susanna Amold, dau Capt Nathaniel Amold [called Capt. "Nichols"
in Waterbury VR; probably “Nathaniel* meant]
iv. John, b 30 Oct 1735
v. Jonathan, b 9 Dec 1737, m 12 Dec 1764, Thanful Doolittle, dau Thomas; had son Luke, b 1 May 1767
vi. Dorcas, b 1 Oct 1739; m ; had Allin Fulford, b 22 Nov 1762, d y, 24 Nov 1763
vii. Lois, b 6 Sept 1741, d y, 10 Sept 1741
viii. Eunice, b 19 May 1743
be. David, b 19 Jan 1747/8, d y, 21 Aug 1749
X (tripletson),b_ ,d__
Xl (tripletson),b__ ,d___
Xii. (tipletson),b__ .d____

He was married to Abigail + WELTON on 29 Mar 1727 in Waterbury, Connecticut. Waterbury VR 1:80
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485. Abigall + WELTON was bom about 1710,

486, Capt Nathaniel + ARNOLD Jr was bom about 1703/4 in Hartford, CT. He died on 12 May 1777 in Waterbury,
Connecticut. Died of smallpox ("A Connecticut Amold Memorial* 1990). Ref John Wesley Amold, MD, "A Connecticut

Amold Memorial,” Long Beach, CA, 1990; James Savage, "Genealogical Dictionary,” Boston, 1860-2.

f
Nathaniel Amold, bep Hartford, Ct, 1703/04, d of smallpox, Waterbury, Ct, 12 May 1777, m 26 July 1732, Elizabeth Richeson
b 50ct 1704, d 11 Oct 1773, his "step-sister™: she was dan John Richeson & Elizabeth Richards, the latter being Nathaniel's
wife's mother. Nathaniel was Captain, 4th Co, Westbury Parish. Children:

i Timothy, b 4 June 1733, d'y, 18 July 1775
ii. Noah, b 5 June 1735, d 14 Feb 1758 [Waterbury VR
ifi. Dinsh, d 3 Jan 1750
iv. SUSANNAH, b 7 Apr 1740, d 5 July 1798; m 27 June 1758, Titus Fulford, b 25 Nov 1733 (ten children)

v. David

He was married to Elizabeth + RICHESON on 26 Jul 1732,
487. Elizabeth + RICHESON was bomn on 5 Oct 1704, She died on 11 Oct 1773.

496. Daniel + OLMSTED was bom in 1682 in Norwalk, CT. Ref. Henry King Olmsted & George K Ward, "Genealogy of
the Olmsted Family in America", New York, NY, 1912, (otherwise called in these notes, "Olmsted Genealogy™).

Daniel Olmsted, b Norwalk ? Ct, 1682, d ; m Norwalk ? Ct, 9 May 1711, Hannah Ketchum, dau Joseph Ketchum of
Norwalk. Daniel “with his brother Richard and twenty-two others bought, with the permission of the Genera! Assembly at
Hartford, on the 30th of Sept., 1708, of the Indian, Sachem Catoonsh, and his associates, for £100, a tract of land (2000 acres),
now Ridgefield, Conn. The land was divided into home lots of 21-2 acres ezch, and also 5 acres in the rear of each home were
added to each lot. These lots were distributed by a lottery; Daniel's lot was No. 24; Richard's, No. 11; Daniel was for many
years an influential man in town affairs. In 1732 he was confirmed by the General Assemby, Ensign of the Ridgefield Train
Band. He was Representative in 1742 and 1743." Daniel and Hannah's children were:

i, Daniel, b 9 Feb 1712, d 22 Sept 1730, ge 18

ii. Samuel

iii. Nathan

iv. AMBROSE, b Ridgefield, Ct, 9 May 1719

v. Hanneh, b 16 July 1721; m 22 Mar 1737, Benjemin Goodrich

vi. Jonathan
vii. Elizabeth, b 3 Feb 1727, d 11 Mar 1825, ae 98; m 8 Oct 1745, Benjamin Stebbins, Jr, of Ridgefield He was married to
Hennah + KETCHUM on 9 May 1711,

497. Hannah + KETCHUM.

498. Moses + COMSTOCK was bom on 4 May 1685, He died on 18 Jan 1766 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Cyrus B Comstock, "A
Comstock Genealogy: Descendants of William Comstock of New London, Conn.,” New York, 1907.

Moses Comstock, b 4 May 1685, d 18 Jan 1766; m 23 Feb 1709/10, Abigail Brinsmade, b 1691, d Norwalk, Ct, 16 Nov 1766, ae
75, dan Danie] & Sarah (Kellogg) Brinsmade; res, Norwalk,

"Moses' (3) will of 24 Jan., 1754, proved 11 Feb., 1766, mentions wife Abigeil, daus, Sareh and Phebe, unmarried; sons, Abijah
and Moses; daus. Abigail, Hannah, and Martha; grandchildren Ruth and Isabel, children of my deceased dau. Dinah Hanford;
grandsons Moses Hanford, son of Samuel Hanford, and Moses Comstock Eells, son Abijah executor; David Comstock &
witness. The will gives to his wife Abigeil ‘the life use and improvement of my negro man Caesar, my mulatto boy John, and
negro woman, Bett.' ... William C. Bryant, in his ‘Letters of a Traveller,' tells the following story of Moses (3): 'He prided
himself on the strict and literal fulfilment of his word. On one occasion he had a law-suit with one of his neighbors before a
justice of the peace, in which he was cast and ordered to pay ten shillings damages, and a shilling as the fees of court. He paid
the ten shillings and asked the justice whether he would allow him to pay the remaining shilling when he next passed his door.
The magistrate readily consented, but from that time old Comstock never went by his house. Whenever he had occasion to gc
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to church or to any other place the direct road to which led by the justice’s door, he was careful to take a lane which passed
behind the dwelling and at some distance from it. The shilling remained unpaid up to the day of his death, and it was found
that in his last will he had directed that his corpse should be carried by that lane to the place of interrment.

“His daughters, Sarah and Phebe, remained unmarried, and carried on a fine fam, They had & slave Onesimus bought for 39
pounds, 9 Aug., 1773. Both being mounted, he used to ride after Miss Phebe when she went into Norwalk. Phebe's will of 2
Feb., 1810, gives her servent Onesimus to her niéce Phebe Comstock, and the will of the latter of 14 Nov., 1840, charges Darit
Fermis with the care of Onesimus during life.

*Town grants to Moses Comstock, 14 March, 1705-6, 14 A. on Long Island.

"Moses Comstock and his mother Hannah, 22 May 1707, deed to his brother Samuel part of his father Christopher’s home lot
Feb. 2, 1725-6, Moses was appointed guardian of his nephews, Samuel and James Olmstead.

"Moses Comstock of Norwalk, 11 Dec., 1749, deeded to son Moses land st Silver Mine Hill, bounded by his son Abijah's.”
Children of Moses Comstock and Abigeil Brinsmade:

i Abigail
ii. Hannah; m the Rev'd John Eells
iii. Abijeh, b 19 Nov 1721, m 30 May 1745, Deborah Benedict
iv. MARTHA, bc 1723, d 4 Aug 1814, ae 91; m 1 July 1742, Ambrose Clmstead
v. Moses, d 1789, m 30 June 1748, Elizabeth St John
vi. Sarah, be 1726, d 1796, ae 70, unm
vil. Phebe, be 1731, d 1817, ae 86, unm
viil. Dinah; m Sarnue! Hanford.

Cyrus Comstock notes, “Moses' daughters Sarah and Phebe lived unmarried till old age, the one magaing a fine farm, the othes
the house, Miss Phebe is the one mentioned in Bryant's ‘Letters of a Traveller.”

He was married to Abigail + BRINSMADE on 23 Feb 1709/10 in Norwalk, CT.

495. Ablgall + BRINSMADE was bom about 1691. She died on 16 Nov 1766 in Norwalk, CT. *In 75th year.” (Jacobus,
"Families of Old Feirfield,” v 1, p 103))

TENTH GENERATION

960. Lt Samuel + PHELPS I was bom on 29 Jan 1675 in Windsor, Connecticut. He died before 1749 in Windsor,
Connecticut. The Phelps Genealogy, 1899, says of Lt Samuel Phelps I that he was b Windsor, Ct, 29 Jan 1675, dying there
before 1749; m 3 June 1706, Abigail Eno, b Windsor, 1 Mar 1686, d Windsor, 25 Dec 1749, deu James & Abigail (Bissell) Eno.
Samuel's will was dated, Hartford, 26 Oct 1741, and the probate mentions children Samuel, James, Hezekigh, Josiah, and
Abigail. The nine children of Samuel and Abigeil, b Windsor, Ct, were:

i Abigail, b 8 Mar 1707, m 29 Feb 1743, Jehiel Grant, s Thomas Grant of Torrington
ii. SAMUEL, b 5 Apr 1708-10; m(1) Ruth Phelps; m(2) Damarius Gilender {Demaris Gilman]
iii. James, b 12 Aug 1713,d y, 3Aprl1718 acs
iv. Matthew, b 25-28 Jan 1715, d 1743, unm
v. Mary, b 20 Feb 1718, d y, 15 Mar 1718
vi. James, b 23 Jan 1720; m Hester Fowler
vil. Tabitha, b 18 Jan 1721, d bef 1749, m 21 Feb 1739, Ebenezer Moore, s Wm; no chn
viii. Joshua, b 13 Oct 1729; m Hannsh Birge
ix. Hezekish, b _; m Lydia Griswold

He was married to Abigail + ENO on 3 Jun 1706.
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961. Abigail+ ENO was bom on 1 Mar 1686 in Windsor, Connecticut. She died on 25 Dec 1749 in Windsor, Connecticut.

962. William + PHELPS was bom on 4 Feb 1668/69 in Windsor, Connecticut. He died in 1733. Williamn Phelps, b Windsor
Ct, 4 Feb 1668/9, d 1733; m(1) Windsor, 7 Dec 1699, Abigail Mudge, d 24 Apr 1705; m(2) Windsor, 18 Apr 1706, Ruth
Barber, b 24 July 1683, d 2 Aug 1747, sister to Joseph Barber and dau Samuel & Ruth {Drake) Barber. Two children by first
wife and the following by second wife Ruth Barber, all b Windsor:

iii. Cabeb, b 11 Jan 1708; m(1) Mary Moore; m(2) Mary (Lathrop) Henderson
iv. Jacob, b 18 June 1711; m Abigail Alvord
v. RUTH, b 23 Jan 1713; m Samuel Phelps

He was married to Ruth + BARBER on 18 Apr 1706 in Windsor, Connecticut. Ruth Barber was William Phelp's second
wife; he had m(1) 7 Dec 1699, Abigail Mudge, who d 24 Apr 1705. William had had two children by his first wifs. [Stiles:
Windsor).

963. Ruth+BARBER was bom on 24 Jul 1683 in Windsor, Connecticut. She died on 2 Aug 1747,

964. Joseph +BARBER was born in 1681 in Windsor, Connecticut. He died in 1748, Ref Donald S Barber, *The Barbers
of Connecticut,” 1992

Joseph Barber, b Windsor, Ct, 1681, d 1748; m(1) Hannah , d 1705; m(2) Mary Loomis, b 15 Jan 1690/1, d 7 May 1786,
dau Sgt Daniel & Mary (Ellsworth) Loomis.

Children by (1), Hannsh, both b Windsor:

i. Mindwell, d 3 Dec 1712
ii. Hannah, d 1705
Children by (2), Mary Loomis, all b Windsor:
iii. Joseph, b 28 Jan 1708/09; m Elizabath Cook
iv. SAMUEL, b 6 Aug 1710; m(1) Ann Gillett; m(2) Comfort Merriam
v. Daniel, b2 July 1712,d y, 17 June 1714
vi. Abigail, b 1713,dy, 11 July 1714
vil. Mary, b 24 Mar 1714; m Windsor, 1 May 1735, Enoch Drake
viii. Mindwell, b 8 Oct 1716; m 23 Oct 1740, Ezekiel Scoville of Harwinton
ix. Daniel, b 23 Apr 1719; m(1) Naomi Barber; m(2) Sarah Phelps
x. Elizabeth, b 25 Feb 1721, d y, 1 June 1722
xi. Jonah, b 9 Jan 1723; m Jerusha Barber

He wes married to Mary + LOOMIS on 6 Mey 1707/8 in Windsor, Connecticut.
965. Mary + LOOMIS was bom on 15 Jan 1690. She died on 7 May 1786.
966. Danlel+ GILLETT.

967. Mary +ENO.
968. Abraham + FULFORD.

970. Stephen + WELTON died before Mar 1727. He was maried to Mary + GAYLORD on 4 Mar 1701/2 in Waterbury,
Connecticut. Waterbury VR 1:115; see also D L Jacobus, *Ancient Families of New Haven,” pp 636 ff (Gaylord).

971. Mary + GAYLORD was born about 1685 in Farmington, Ct ?. She died on 18 Jul 1709 in ‘Waterbury, Connecticut.

972. Nathanlel + ARNOLD Sr was borm in 1674/75. He died on 13 Sep 1735 in Waterbury, Connecticut. Ref John Wesley
Amold, "A Connecticut Amnold Memorial,” Long Beach, CA, 1990;
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James Savage, "Genealogical Dictionary,” Roston, 1860-2.

Nathaniel Amold, be 1674/75, d Amold's Hill, Waterbury, Ct, 13 Sept 1735, m(1) ¢ 1700, Sarah ?; m(2) (date 7, Mrs Elizabeth
(Richards) Richeson, b July 1675, d 23 May 1750 (or Feb 17497), dau Obediah Richards and widow of John Richeson. {Her
daughter, Elizabeth Richeson, b 5 Oct 1704, m her step-son Nathaniel Ameld, Jr)) Children:

1 NATHANIEL, Jr, bap 1703/04 '
ii. Serah, bap 3 Mar 1705/06, d Waterbury, 22 Nov 1736
ifi. Susannah, bap 23 May 1708, d Dec 1736; m 22 Aug 1733, James Hull, b 27 Nov 1705, d 1782, s John of New Haven. He
m(2) 8 June 1738, Jane Johnson
iv. Josiah, b Hartford, 12 Sept 1712, d unm in war, Spanish West Indies
v. John, bap Sept 1714, d 18 Nov 1786, prob unm [Waterbury VR]
vi. Benjamin ?

He was married to Elizabeth + RICHARDS about 1702,
973. Elizabeth + RICHARDS was bomn in Jul 1675, She died orn 23 May 1750,

992. John + OLMSTED was bomn about 1649 in Hartford, CT. He died in 1704 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Olmsted Genealogy,
1812

Lt John Olmsted, bp Hartford, Ct, 30 Dec 1649, d prob 1704, son of Richard; m(1) 11 Nov 1670, Mery Benedict, dau Thomas &
Mary (Bridgum) Benedict of Southold ? LI; m(2) Mrs Elizabeth (Pardie) Gregory, b 10 June 1660, dan George Pardie and
widow of Thomas Gregory. Elizabeth survived her husband. In 1673, in *the Estates of Lands and Accommodations of ye
towne of Norwelk," John Olmsted is credited with £50. In 1699 he was chosen & Selectman, as he was again in 1703,

A different date for the marriage to Mary Benedict is given in the NEHGR, which says it was 17 July 1673 (NEHGR 59:356-7).
Conceming the children, it is "probable,” this source states, that Mary died soon after the birth of Eunice, and that Elizabeth
waes the first child of the second wife, Mrs. Elizebeth Gregory. This is the assumption we make here in listing John's children
(no mention being made in the Olmsted Genealogy of by which wife):

Children by (1) Mary Benedict:

i. Mary, b 1675; m Norwalk, 9 May 1694, Thomas Reed, (Thomas's father, John, was an officer in Cromwell's anmy.)
ii. John ;
ifi. Jane, b 1677, mc 1700, Benjamin Wilson of Norwalk
iv. Sarah, b 1679; m 5 June 1696, Jonathan Abbot of Norwalk
v. Rebecca, b 1681; m Samuel St John
vi. DANIEL, b 1682; m 9 May 1711, Hannah Ketchum
vil. Richard
viii. Eunice, b 1687

Children by (2) Mrs Elizabeth (Pardie) Gregory:

ix. Elizabeth, b Norwalk, 1690; m 14 June 1710, Henry Whitney

x. Deborah, b 1693

XL Abigail, b 1696
xii. Anna, b 1698; mc 1720, Robert Andrews He was maried to Mary + BENEDICT on 17 Jul 1673 in Noswalk, CT. Cf
NEHGR. 59:356-7.

993. Mary + BENEDICT was born about 1650 in Southold, Long Island. She died about 1688 in Norwalk, CT. Cf NEHGR
59:356-7.

994. Joseph + KETCHUM.

996. Christopher + COMSTOCK (Emig ?7) was bomn between 1633 and 1635. He died on 28 Dec 1702 5 Norwalk, CT.
Ref Cyrus B Comstock, *A Comstock Geneslogy,” New York, 1907; pp 8, 9. See also John Insley Coddington, "Richard
Platt of Milford, Ct* in "The American Genesalogist,” vol 31, pp 167-168.
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Christopher Comstock, b betw 1633 and 1635, d Norwalk, Ct, 28 Dec 1702; m 6 Oct 1663, Hannah Platt, bap Norwalk, 6 Oct
1643, dau Richard Platt of Milford, Ct. Christopher is thought to be a son of William Comstock of New London; for Cyrus
Comstock's reasons, see the biographical summeary for William; for Coddington's, v infra.

Comstock (op cit) writes: "Christopher lived in Fairfield and Norwalk... His will was dated Norwalk 23 Dec 1701, proved 4 Jar
1702-3; gives to wife Hannah; to son Moses when 21; to son Samuel; to deu. Hannsh Comstock; to dan. Mercy Comstock; to
grandson Daniel, wife and son Samuel, executors, On 29 May, 1654, Christopher Comstock made affidavit about visiting goo
wife Knapp charged with witcheraft. She was executed. On 27 Jan., 1661, Christopher, then of Fairfield, Conn., bought land
of Thomas Betts. On 19 Sept,, 1692, he was member of a grand jury for witches.

"Christopher Comstock of Norwalk was nominated for freedman 10 Oct,, 1667... Oct. 14, 1686, was a deputy to the General
Court; 16 Jan., 1694, he was one of a committee ‘to look out for and obtain a faithful minister’ for Norwalk. Hannah
(Comstock) Fenn, dau. of Christopher, bought a Bible in 1732 dated 1727 for 2 pounds, 15 shillings, which she says she
‘yearned in her youth.! In 1740 she gave it to her brother Moses, who gave it to his dan. Hannah, who m. Phineas Hanford.
She gave it to her grandaughter Hannah Handford who m. William Richards. The book then passed into the hands of William
Richards, Jr., and now [1907] belongs to his dsughter, Mrs. Charles Saylor. Hinrnan says Christopher brought with him from
England a silver tankard with his coat of arms upon it. His preat-grandson Major Samue! Comstock gave it to the church st
Wilton, Ct., and it was melted up.”

Children of Christopher Comstock and Hannsh Platt, all born at Norwalk:

i. Daniel, b 21 July 1664, d 1694; m Elizabeth Wheeler

ii. Hannah, b 15 July 1666; m Fenn

ifi. Abigail, b 27 Jan 1669/70, d ¢ Feb 1689/90, ae c 20

iv. Mary, b 19 Feb 1671/2, d 17 Oct 1749, m 18 Jan 1693, James St John

v. Elizabeth, b 7 Oct 1674, m Ebenezer St John

vi. Mercy, b 12 Nov 1676, m Nathan Olmstead
vii. Samuel, b 6 Feb 1679/80, d 26 Oct 1752, ae 73
viii. MOSES, b 4 May 1685, d 18 Jan 1766, ae 82; m 23 Feb 1709/10, Abigail Brinsmade, dan Daniel Brinsmade & Sarah
Kellogg

With regard to Christopher's parentage and other items of interest, Coddington (op cit) hes this to say:

"[Christopher] was probably (but not certainly) a son of William (1) Comstock of Wethersfield and New London, Conn.
Christopher Comstock was st Fairfield by 1653, for in the following year he testified to having visited the convicted witch,
Goodwife Knapp, wife of Roger Knapp of Fairfield, who had been executed for witchcraft in 1653. ... Christopher moved to
Norwalk before 1663, became an innkeeper, and was nominated for freeman of Conn. Colony 10 Oct. 1667. He served as
Deputy from Norwalk to the Conn. General Assembly in Oct. 1686, May and June 1689, and May 1690. In 1692 he served on
the grand jury which indicted Mercy Disbrow and others for witchcraft. His will, dated 22 Dec. 1701, was proved 4 Jan.
1702/3, and named wife Hannah, sons Moses and Samuel, daughters Hannah Comstock and Mercy Comstock; every
grandchild was to have a Bible; his wifis and son Samuel to be executors and friends Rev. Stephen Buckingham and James
Olmstead overseers. (See Cyrus Ballou Comstock, "A Comstock Genealogy,” 1907; John Adams Comstock, *A History and
Genealogy of the Comstock Family in America,” 1948; Jacobus, "Old Fairfield,” 1:156-7; Selleck, "Miner Family," 92; and
Holman, "Stevens-Miller Ancestry,” 1:479-83, also ante, vol. 30, pp. 81-5. Mrs. Holman observed (loc. cit.) that Christopher
Comstock ‘may have been a son of William Comstock ... but no proof of the relationship has been discovered, and
Christopher named no son William.! But Hannzh (Platt) Comstock was undoubtedly 8 daughter of Richard Platt, yet
Christopher and Hannsh named no son Richard either, and not one of Christopher Comstock’s children named a son
Christopher. William, Richard, and Christopher were alt un-puritan names, and the Comstocks, like many Puritan families,
were more influenced by devotion to the Bible than by filial piety in choosing names for their children.)”

He was married to Hannsh + PLATT on 6 Oct 1663 in Norwalk, CT.

997. Hannah + PLATT was bom about 1643. She was christened on 1 Oct 1643 in Milford, CT. She died after 28 Dec 1702
in Norwalk, CT.

998. Danlel + BRINSMADE was born about 1644 in Charlestown, MA. He died in Oct 1702, Inventory, 7 Oct 1702 Ref:
Donald Lines Jacobus, "Farnilies of Old Fairfield,” v 1, pp 102-103,

Daniel Brinsmade, b Charlestown, MA, ¢ 1644, d , 1702 {inventory, 7 Oct 1702); mc 1683, Sarah Kellogg, b 1659/60,
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dau Daniel Kellogg & Bridget Bouton of Norwalk, CT. Sareh m(2) John Betts of Norwalk,

From his inventory and/or will, we find mentioned his widow Sarah and the children with their sges: Mary, 18; Daniel, 15,
Abigail, 11; Samue}, 8; and Ruth, 2. Son Danie! chose on 18 Mar 1708 his uncle Abraham Nichols of Stratford as guardian,
son Samue! choosing his father-in-law John Betts of Norwalk. (Nichols had married the sister of Sarah Kellogg.)

Children of Daniel Brinsmade and Sarah Kellogg: /

1. Mary, be 1684, d Stratford, 26 July 1712, m Stratford, 3 Mey 1708, Samuel Wheeler
ii. Daniel, be 1687, d Trumbull, 27 Mar 1757, ae 70 (gs); m(1) ¢ 1715, Mercy ,d15 Apr 1731, ae 35, m(2) ¢ 1732,
Hannah Mix, dsp ¢ 1763, dau Nathaniel Mix of New Haven
iii. ABIGAIL, be 1691, d Norwalk, 16 Nov 1766, az 75; m Norwalk, 23 Feb 17005/10, Moses Comstock, s Christopher
iv. Samuel, bc 1694
v. Ruth, be 1700, m Stephen Betts of Norwalk

He was martied to Sarah + KELLOGG about 1683,

999, Sarah + KELLOGG was bom in Feb 1659/60 in Norwalk, CT.

ELEVENTH GENERATION

1920. Lt Timothy + PHELPS was bom on 1 Sep 1639 in Windsor, Connecticut. He signed a will on 2 Mar 1717 in Windsor,
Connecticut. He died in 1719 in Windsor, Connecticut. The Phelps Genealogy, 1899, gives the following children for Lt
Timothy Phelps, all bomn in Windsor (pp 96-97):

t Timothy, b 1 Nov 1663, bp 8 Nov 1663; m Martha Crow
ii. Joseph, b 27 Sept 1666, m Sarah Hosford
fii,. WILLIAM, b 4 Feb 1669; m(1) Abigail Mudge; m(2) Ruth Barber
iv. Comelius, b 26 Apr 1671; m Serah Mansfield
v. Mary, b 14 Aug 1673, d 23 May 1690, ae 17
vi. SAMUEL, b 29 Jan 1675, m Abigail Eno
vii Nathaniel, b 7 Jan 1677, bp 13 Jan 1677; m(1) Hannah Bissell, m(2) Abigail Pinney
viil. Sareh, b 27 Dec 1679; m David Marshall of Hebron, Ct
D¢, Abigail, b 3 June 1682, m Samuel Filer
x. Harmah, b 2 Aug 1684, bp 16 Aug 1684; m Thomas Phelps
xi Anne, b 2 Oct 1686, m David Porter
xii. Martha, b 12 Nov 1688, m Corp Samuel Holcomb

"Mir. Phelps resided in Windsor, Ct., on the old homestead, on land purchased by his father from the Indians. He was
propounded Oct., 1663, and made a freeman 2d May, 1664. May, 1690, "Thos. Allen chosen and allowed Capt. of Trained
Band in Windsor, and Timothy Phelps, Lieut,, and are to be commissioned accordingly.

"May, 1696, The soldiers at Windsor have chosen Timothy Phelps as their Capt, the Court approveth their said choice and
does order the said officers shall receive their commissions. Sgt. Timothy Phelps that went up to the Great Falls in Oct. last,
ordered by the Gov. and Coundil, 6 Feb., 1706-7, upon public service, shall be allowed 8 shillings apiece more than allowed
them by Capt. Matthew Allen.'

*He was appointed a Lieut. by the General Court, receiving his commission in 1707 in the Queen Ann War. He died in 1719.

His will, dated 2nd May, 1717, mentions &1l his children, (except Mary who died young), and grandson Samuel Filer, son of
his daughter Abigail.

*11th June, 1667, "to the Poor of other Colonies, Timothy Phelps 3s. 6d.’ - (Stile's History.)

*Capt. Matthew Altyn [sic] led a company from Windsor, in the unfortunate campaign egainst Quebec. From letters to his
wife from the camp on Woods Creek near Albany, that 'Himself, Tim. Phelps, Obadish Owen, Mat. Taylor and Bartlett are
sick. Taylor the worst.'

*In a deposition taken in Hartford, Ct., Mar. 1682-3, he is mentioned as son of William, ebout forty-two years old."

Timothy’s will, as printed on pp 94-96, is found in the Hartford Probate Records, vol 9, pp 38 f£
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LAST WILL AND TESTAMENT of Mr. Timothy Phelps of Windsor, in the County of Hartford and Colony of Connecticut in

New England.
In the name of God, Amen:-

I, TIMOTHY PHELPS of Windsor, in the town, county and colony aforesaid in New England, being very aged, and yet
through the mercy of God retaining & good measyre of that understanding and memory that he hath been pleased to bestow
upon me, do make and ordain this to be my last will and testament: First, ] commit my soul to God in Jesus Christ my saviour
and my body to the earth, to be decently entered. As for my estate Real and personal, my just Debts and funeral expenses
being deducted and paid by my Exrs., I will devise and bequeath as followeth.

Imprimis. I give, devise and bequeath all my estate whatsoever, Both Real end personal, To my three sons William, Comelius,
and Samuell to have and to hold and Improve the same in trust for the use of my wife during her natural life and after her
decease my will is and [ hereby do give and devise ell my houseing and Lands with the appurtenances, To my sons Timothy
Phelps, William Phelps, Comelius Phelps, Samuel Phelps, Nathl. Phelps and the heirs of Joseph Phelps, in the Room of their
father to be equally divided into Six Equal parts provided always; and it is my will that they pay and make up to their Sisters
Sarah, Hannah, Ann and Martha, my daughters or to their heirs and to the heirs of my daughter Abigail deceased fourty eight
pounds as money apiece and my will is that what they have already received as entered upon my book shall be reckoned as
part of said sum and if my said sons and the heirs of my son Joseph shall pay their sisters and their heirs above mentioned in
equal proportion except that the heirs of Joseph shall pay four pounds more than an equal proportion and my son Comelius
four pounds less than an equal proportion. And my will further is that my wife shall have the free disposal of all her wearning
appare! at her decease and that my grandson Samuel! Filer shall have half of that bequeathed to the heirs of my Daughter
Abigail if he liveth with me so long as I live or till he comes to the age of eighteen years and I do hereby nominate and appoint
my loving wife Mary to be my executrix end my three sons William, Comelius and Seml. to be my executors to this my last

will and testament.

In witness whereof that this is my last will and Testament I ye sd. Timothy Phelps have hereto put my hand end seal this
Second day of March Anno Domini One thousand Seven hundred sixteen or seventeen.
his
TIMOTHY X PHELPS
mark andaseal

The said Timothy Phelps signed, sealed & declared this to be his last will & Testament in presence of us.
JOHN MANSFIELD
THOMAS MOORE

And whereas I being aged and my wife so and not knowing how long it may please God to continue my life and not knowing
what debts and charge may Arise before I leave this world my will is that my sons and my daughters & their heirs shall pay
their equal parts and shares of my debts and charges after my decease and my daughters Sareh Hannah, Ann & Martha & the
heirs of Abigail shall have fourty six pounds apiece with what they have already have to be paid as money out of my estate
after my decease by the charge as above mentioned I intend that if there be any extraordinary charge so that the improvement
of my estate will not maintain me this addition of my will was made and published this second day of March, One thousand
Seven hundred Sixteen or Seventeen.

his
TIMOTHY X PHELPS
mark andaseal

Signed, sealed and declared to be his addition to his Will and Testament in presence of us:
JOHN MANSFIELD
THOMAS MOORE

Windsor, September 28th, 1719

He was married to Mary + GRISWOLD on 19 Mar 1661.

1921. Mary + GRISWOLD was bom in 1644 in Windsor, Connecticut. She was baptized on 13 Oct 1644 in Windsor,
Connecticut.
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1922. James + ENO.

1923. Ablgail + BISSELL.

1924. Lt Timothy + PHELPS was bom on 1 Sep 1639 in Windsor, Connecticut. He signed a will on 2 Mar 1717 in Windsor,
Connecticut. He died in 1719 in Windsor, Connecticut. The Phelps Genealogy, 1899, gives the following children for Lt
Timothy Phelps, all born in Windsor (pp 96-97):

i. Timothy, b 1 Nov 1663, bp 8 Nov 1663; m Martha Crow

il. Joseph, b 27 Sept 1666; m Sarah Hosford

ifi. WILLIAM, b 4 Feb 1669; m(1) Abigail Mudge; m(2) Ruth Barber

iv. Comelius, b 26 Apr 1671; m Sarah Mansfield

v. Mary, b 14 Aug 1673, d 23 May 1690, ac 17

vi. SAMUEL, b 29 Jan 1675; m Abigail Eno
vil. Nathaniel, b 7 Jan 1677, bp 13 Jan 1677, m(1) Hannah Bissell; m(2) Abigeil Pinney
viii. Sarah, b 27 Dec 1679, m David Marshelt of Hebron, Ct

. Abigeil, b 3 June 1682; m Samuel Filer

X. Hannah, b 2 Aug 1684, bp 16 Aug 1684; m Thomas Phelps

xi. Anne, b 2 Oct 1686; m David Porter
xii. Martha, b 12 Nov 1688; m Corp Samue! Holcomb

"Mr. Phelps resided in Windsor, Ct., on the old homestead, on land purchased by his father from the Indians. He was
propounded Oct.,, 1663, and mede a freeman 2d May, 1664. May, 1690, "Thos. Allen chosen and allowed Capt. of Trained
Band in Windsor, and Timothy Phelps, Lieut., and are to be commissioned accordingly.

"May, 1696, The soldiers at Windsor have chosen Timothy Phelps as their Capt, the Court approveth their said choice and
does order the said officers shall receive their commissions. Sgt. Timothy Phelps that went up to the Great Falls in Oct. last,
ordered by the Gov. and Council, 6 Feb., 1706-7, upon public service, shalt be allowed 8 shillings apiece more than allowed
them by Capt. Matthew Allen.!

"He was appointed & Lieut. by the General Court, receiving his commission in 1707 in the Queen Ann War, He died in 1719.

His will, dated 2nd May, 1717, mentions all his children, (except Mary who died young), and grandson Samuel Filer, son of
his daughter Abigail.

"11th June, 1667, ‘to the Poor of other Colonies, Timothy Phelps 3s, 6d." - (Stile's History.)

"Capt. Matthew Allyn {sic] led a company from Windsor, in the unfortunate campaign against Quebec. From letters to his
wife from the camp on Woods Creek near Albany, that ‘Himself, Tim, Phelps, Obadizh Owen, Mat. Taylor and Bartlett are
gick. Taylor the worst.!

*In a deposition taken in Hartford, Ct., Mar. 1682-3, he is mentioned as son of William, about forty-two years old.”

Timothy's will, es printed on pp 94-96, is found in the Hartford Probate Records, vol 9, pp 38 ff

LAST WILL AND TESTAMENT of Mr. Timothy Phelps of Windsor, in the County of Hartford and Colony of Connecticut in
New England.

In the name of God, Amen;-

L, TIMOTHY PHELPS of Windsor, in the town, county end colony aforesaid in New England, being very aged, and yst
through the mercy of God retaining a good meastre of that understanding and memory that he hath been pleased to bestow
upon me, do make and ordain this to be my last will and testament: First, f commit my soul to God in Jesus Christ my saviour
and my body to the earth, to be decently entered. As for my estate Real and personal, my just Dabts and fineral expenses
being deducted and paid by my Exrs., I will devise and bequeath as followeth.

Imprimis. [ give, devise and bequeath all my estate whatsoever, Both Real and personal, To my three sons William, Comelius,
and Samuell to have and to hold and Improve the same in trust for the use of my wife during her natural lifs and after her
decease my will is and [ hereby do give and devise all my houseing and Lands with the appurtenances, To my sons Timothy
Phelps, William Phelps, Comelius Phelps, Semuel Phelps, Nathl. Phelps and the heirs of Joseph Phelps, in the Room of their
father to be equally divided into Six Equal parts provided always; and it is my will that they pay and make up to their Sisters
Sarah, Hannah, Ann and Martha, my daughters or to their heirs and to the heirs of my daughter Abigail deceased fourty eight
pounds as money apiece and my will is that what they have already received as entered upon my book shall be reckoned as
part of said sumn and if my said sons and the heirs of my son Joseph shall pay their sisters and their heirs above mentioned in
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equal proportion except that the heirs of Joseph shall pay four pounds more than an equal proportion and my son Comelius
four pounds less than an equal proportion. And my will further is that my wife shall have the free disposal of all her wearing
apparel at her decease ang that my grandson Samuel Filer shall have helf of that bequeathed to the heirs of my Daughter
Abiguil if he liveth with me so Jong &s 1 live or till he comes to the age of eighteen years and I do hereby nominate and appoint
my loving wife Mary to be my execntrix and my three sons William, Comelius and Saml. to be my executors to this my last
will and testament.

r
In witness whereof that this is my last will and Testament I ye sd. Timothy Fhelps have hereto put my hand and seal this
Second day of March Anno Domini One thousand Seven hundred sixteen or seventeen.
his
TIMOTHY X PHELPS
mark eaendaseal

The said Timothy Phelps signed, sealed & declared this to be his last will & Testament in presence of us.
JOHN MANSFIELD
THOMAS MOORE

And whereas I being aged and my wife so and not knowing how long it may please God to continue my life and not knowing
what debts and charge may Arise before I leave this world my will is that my sons and my daughtars & their heirs shall pay
their equal parts and shares of my debts and charges after my decease and my davghters Sareh Hannah, Ann & Martha & the
heirs of Abigail shall have fourty six pounds apiece with what they have already have to be paid 2s money out of my estate
after my decease by the charge s above mentioned I intend that if there be any extraordinary charge so that the improvemnant
of my estate will not maintain me this addition of my will was made end published this second day of March, One thousand
Seven hundred Sixteen or Seventeen.

his
TIMOTHY X PHELPS
mark andaseal

Signed, sealed and declared to be his addifion to his Will and Testament in presence of us:
JOHN MANSFIELD
THOMAS MOORE

Windsor, September 28th, 1719

He was married to Mary + GRISWOLD on 19 Mar 1661.

1925. Mary + GRISWOLD was bom in 1644 in Windsor, Connecticut. She was baptized on 13 Oct 1644 in Windsor,
Connecticut.

1926. Samue] + BARBER was bomn about Sep 1648 in Windsor, Connecticut. He was baptized on | Oct 1648 in Windsor,
Connecticut. He died on 12 Mar 1708/9 in Windsor, Connecticut. Ref Donald S Barber, "The Barbers of Connecticut,” 1992

Samuel Barber, b Windsor, Ct, 1 Oct 1648, d Windsor, 12 Mar 1708/09; m{1) Windsor, 1 Dec 1670, Mary Coggin, & 19 May
1676, m(2) 25 Jen 1676/7, Ruth Drake, b 1 Dec 1657, d Windsor, 13 Nov 1731, dan John & Hannah (Moore) Drake.

*After his parents’ death just afler his 14th birthday, Samuel was placed in the home of his brother Thomas until age 21. At
about the time of his marriage, Samuel apparently went with his brother to Simsbury, but must have returned to Windsor
soon, because all of his family’s vital records were recorded in Windsor. He lived in a house on the original Barber tract, nearly
opposite the Windsor Cannery on Poquonock Ave. This house was first occupied by his brother John, but wes transferred to
Samuel when John moved to Springfield. [Ref Barber Gen; Barbour IX:b,m,d; CHS:LBBarbour Ms)."

Children by (1), Mary Coggin, all b Windsor:

i. Thomas, b 7 Oct 1671, d y, bur 31 Oct 1673, ae 2
il Samuel, b 26 Jan 1673, d 1 Feb 1722/3; m(1) Hepzibah Brown, dau Peter & Mary (Gillett) Brown; m(2) Windsor, 18 June
1713, Martha Ponder of Westfield, MA
iil. John, b 25 Jan 1676,d y
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Children by (2), Ruth Drake, all b Windsor:

iv. William, b 1678; m Esther Brown

v. Hannah, b 4 Oct 1680/1,dy

vi. Mary (Mercy), b 1680, d 27 Aug 1719; m Windsor, 22 July 1696, Peter Brown, son of Peter & Mary (Gillett) Brown (this
Peter possibly grandson of Peter Brown of Mayflower)
vii. JOSEPH, b 1681; m(1) Hannsh ; m(2) Mary Loomis
viii RUTH, b 24 July 1683, d 2 Aug 1747, m Windsor, 18 Apr 1706, William Phelps, b 4 Feb 1668/9, d 1733, son of Timothy &
Mary (Griswold) Phelps of Windsor

ix. Elizabeth, b 9 Feb 1684/5;, m Windsor, 10 Nov 1709, Daniel Loomis, b 15 Nov 1682, d 1754, son of Daniel & Mary
(Elisworth) Loomis

x. David, b 12 May 1686; m Hennah Post

xi. Benjamin, b 1690; m Hannsh Lewis
xii. Mindwell, b 3 Dec 1691, d 3 Dec 1712
xiv. John, b 1696; m Mary Alvord
xv. Sarah, b 28 Aug 1698, d Westfield, MA, 4 Jan 1741/2;, m(1) Windsor, 17 Oct 1717, Stephen Palmer, d 17 Nov 1720, m(2) 5
Oct 1729, Isaac Phelps III, b Westfield, 26 Jan 1692, son of Isaac & Mary (Maudsly) Phelps

He was married to Ruth + DRAKE on 25 Jan 1676/77 in Windsor, Connecticut.
1927. Ruth + DRAKE was born on 1 Dec 1657. She died on 13 Nov 1731 in Windsor, Connecticut.

1928. Samuel + BARBER was bom about Sep 1648 in Windsor, Connecticut. He was baptized on 1 Oct 1648 in Windsor,
Connecticut  He died on 12 Mar 1708/9 in Windsor, Connecticut. Ref: Donald S Barber, *The Barbers of Connecticut,” 1992

Samuel Barber, b Windsor, Ct, I Oct 1648, d Windsor, 12 Mar 1708/09; m(1) Windsor, 1 Dec 1670, Mary Coggin, d 19 May
1676; m(2) 25 Jan 1676/7, Ruth Drake, b 1 Dec 1657, d Windsor, 13 Nov 1731, dau John & Hannah (Moore) Drake.

*After his parents’ death just after his 14th birthday, Samuel was placed in the home of his brother Thomas until age 21. At
about the time of his marriage, Samue] apparently went with his brother to Simsbury, but must have retumed to Windsor
soon, because all of his family’s vital records were recorded in Windsor. He lived in a house on the original Barber tract, neardy
opposite the Windsor Carmery on Poquonock Ave. This house was first occupied by his brother John, but was transfemed to
Samuel when John moved to Springfield. [Ref Barber Gen, Barbour IX{:b,m,d; CHS:LBBarbour Ms]."

Children by (1), Mary Coggin, all b Windsor:

i Thormas, b 7 Oct 1671, d y, bur 31 Oct 1673, 22 2
it. Samuel, b 26 Jan 1673, d 1 Feb 1722/3; m(1) Hepzbah Brown, dau Peter & Mary (Gillett) Brown; m(2) Windsor, 18 June
1713, Martha Ponder of Westfield, MA
iii. John, b 25 Jan 1676, d y

Children by (2), Ruth Dreke, all b Windsor:

iv. William, b 1678; m Esther Brown

v. Hannzah, b 4 Oct 1680/1,d y

vi. Mary (Mercy), b 1680, d 27 Aug 1719, m Windsor, 22 July 1696, Peter Brown, son of Peter & Mary (Gillett) Brown (this
Peter possibly grandson of Peter Brown of Mayflower)
vil. JOSEPH, b 1681; m(1) Hannah ; m(2) Mary Loomis
viit. RUTH, b 24 July 1683, d 2 Aug 1747, m Windsor, 18 Apr 1706, William Phelps, b 4 Feb 166879, d 1733, son of Timothy &
Mary (Griswold) Phelps of Windsor

ix. Elizabeth, b 9 Feb 1684/5; m Windsor, 10 Nov 1709, Daniel Loomis, b 15 Nov 1682, d 1754, son of Daniel & Mary
(Ellsworth) Loomis

%. David, b 12 May 1686, m Hannah Post

xi. Benjamin, b 1690; m Hannah Lewis
xii. Mindwell, b 3 Dec 1691, d 3 Dec 1712
xiv, John, b 1696, m Mary Alvord
xv. Serah, b 28 Aug 1698, d Westfield, MA, 4 Jan 1741/2; m(1) Windsor, 17 Oct 1717, Stephen Pelmer, d 17 Nov 1720, m(2) 5
Oct 1729, Isaac Phelps III, b Westfield, 26 Jan 1692, son of Isaac & Mary (Maudsly) Phelps
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He was martied to Ruth + DRAKE on 25 Jan 1676/77 in Windsor, Connecticut.

1929. Ruth + DRAKE was bom on 1 Dec 1657. She died on 13 Nov 1731 in Windsor, Connecticut.

/
1930. Daniel + LOOMIS.

1931. Mary+ ELLSWORTH.
1940. John + WELTON died on 18 Jun 1726 in Waterbury, Connecticut.
1941. Mary + UPSON was bom est betw 1640 and 1642. Ref "Upson Family in America,” New Haven, Ct, 1940,

Mary Upson is identified only as wife of John Welton and mother of twelve children, alsc that she was Thomas Upson's
"eldest daughter.® Actually, it appears she was the oldest of five children. No birth dates are supplied by the Upson book
except for the fifth child, Stephen, who was bom "about* 1650, .

Mary's father Thomes was prob b England and d Farmington, Ct, 19 July 1655, He m(1) possibly in England, ;
m(2) Hartford, Ct, 23 Jan 1646, Elizabeth Fuller, who herself m(2) Edmund Scott. The first two children, Mary and Thomas,
were, states this book, possibly by the first wife, the others - Hannah, Elizabeth, and Stephen - all by the second wife and bom
in Farmington.

From the litfle information available, it would appear possible that Mary was bom as early as 1640, if a two-year interval
between children is posited. Even if the spacing were one-year intervals, if Mary was indeed the first child, it would still be
very unlikely that her mother wes Elizabeth Fuller. If, on the other hand, Mary were simply the "eldest daughter,” as Savage
lists the children, it could place her as the third child, meking a birth date of even 1647 a possibility.

1942, Joseph + GAYLORD was bom on 13 May 1649 in Windsor, Connecticut. He died on 2 Feb 1711/12 in Durham,
Connecticut. Ref Doneld Lines Jacobus, "Families of Ancient New Haven,” (Geylord - pp 636 ff)

Joseph Geylord, b Windsor, Ct, 13 May 1649, d Durham, Ct, 2 Feb 1711/12, son Walter & Mary (Stebbins) Gaylord of
Windsor; m Sarah Stenley, dau Capt John Stanley, Joseph was a first settler of Waterbury, his lot being on the present day
comer of East and Main Streets, next to Capt Stanley’s. In 1707 he removed to Dutham.

Children:

L Sarah, b Windsor, Ct, 11 July 1671; m Waterbury, Ct, 11 Apr 1688, Thomas Judd
ii. Joseph, b Windsor, 22 Aug 1673, m Waterbury, 8 Feb 1699/1700, Mary Hickox, b Durham, Ct, 25 May 1678, deu Joseph
Hickox of Woodbury, Ct; 9 chn
iii. John, b Hadley, MA, 21 Apr 1677, d Bstol, Ct, 1753, ae 79, m Woodbury, 20 Nov 1701, Elizabeth Hickox, d Cheshire,
Ct, 19 Dec 1751, ae 73; 13 chn
iv. Elizabeth; m Waterbury, 8 Feb 1699/1700, Joseph Hickox
v. William, d 1753, res Woodbury and New Milford, Ct; m Woodbury, 12 Feb 1706/07, Joanna Minor
vi. Benjamin; m(1) Wallingford, Ct, 8 Jan 1729/30, Jerusha Frisbee, b Branford, Ct, 10 Mar 1712, d Wallingford, 11 May
1734, dau Benjamin & Elizabeth (Henbury) Frisbes; m(2) Wallingford, 14 Feb 1738, Mary Ashley; 3 chn by (1), 6 chn by (2)
vii. MARY, d Waterbury, 18 July 1709; m Waterbury, 4 Mar 1701/02, Stephen Welton
viti. Abigail, bap Farmington, Ct, 7 Nov 1686; m James Williams
ix Joanna, m(l) Robert Royce; m(2) Meriden, 19 Nov 1741, John Johnson of New Haven, Ct; m(3) Meriden, Ct, 19 Dec
1745, Joseph Holt of East Haven, Ct
X. RUTH, "of Farmington"; mc 1711, Stephen Hickox, b Waterbury, ¢ 1684, bap 12 Apr 1685, d Durham, 1726

He was married to Sareh + STANLEY about 1670 in Windsor, Connecticut.
1943, Sarah+STANLEY died on 12 Feb 1711/12 in Durham, Connecticut.

1944, Danlel + ARNOLD was born in 1640. He died on 10 May 1691/92. Ref John Wesley Amold, MD, "A Connecticut
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Amold Memoral," Long Beach, CA, 1990,
James Savage, "Genealogical Dictionary,” Boston, 1860-2,

Daniel Amold, b 1640, d 10 May 1691/2; m Elizabeth Osbome, b Springfield, MA, 27 May 1647, d Waterbury, Ct, 3 Feb
1740/1, dau James Osbome. Children:

i NATHANIEL, be 1674/5 /
ii. David .
iii. Jonathan ? b Hartford, 1680

He was married to Elizabeth + OSBORNE about 1673.

1945. Elizabeth + OSBORNE was bom on 27 May 1647 in Springfield, MA. She died on 3 Feb 1740/41 in Waterbury,
Connecticut.

1946. Obadiah+ RICHARDS was bom about 1648. He resided about 1670 in Farmington, Ct. He was married to Hannah +
ANDREWS sbout 1667 in Farmington, Ct ?.

1947. Hannah + ANDREWS was bomn about 1650.

1984. Richard + OLMSTED was bom about 1612 in Fairsted, Essex. He was baptized on 20 Feb 1612 in Fairsted, Essex.
He signed & will on 5 Sep 1684 in Norwalk, CT. He died after 5 Sep 1684 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Olmsted Genealogy, 1912,
also NEHGR 59:356-7.

RICHARD OLMSTED, the emigrant, bap Fairsted, Essex, 20 Feb 1612, d Norwalk, Ct, ¢ 1684; married twice, but the names
of the wives are unknown. His sons were children of the first wife. He also had a deughter who died before his will was

made, 5 Sept 1684,

i Capt James, be 1647, d bef 28 Apr 1731; m 1 May 1673, Phebe Badow, dau Thomas Barow of Feirfield, Ct
ii. Lt JOHN, bap Hartford, Ct, 30 Dec 1649, d Ridgefield, Ct, ¢ 1704; m(1) 17 July 1673 [NEHGR}, Mary Benedict, dau
Thomas & Mary (Bridgeham) Benedict of Southold, LI

1986. Thomas + BENEDICT was bom in 1617 in Nottinghamshire, England. James Savage, *Genealogical Dictionary,”
i164; Holmes, "Directory of the Ancestral Heads of New England Families, 1620-1700." Savage says Thomas Benedict
emigrated from Nottinghamshire, 1639, coming first to Massachusetts, a¢ 22, and soon after marrying Mary Bridgham, a
fellow-passenger. They removed to Southold, Long Island, before 1650. He was the only son of one William Benedict A
weaver, Savage (i.164) gives the list of his children as follows, all bomn at Southold:

. Thomas, of Norwalk, d 1690; m Jamaica, L, ¢ 1665, Mary Messenger
ii. John, of Norwalk;, m 11 Nov 1670, Phebe Gregory, dau John
iii Samuel, of Norwalk; m 7 July 1678, Rebecca Andrews, dau Francis, of Fairfield
jv. James, of Norwalk; m 10 May 1676, Sarah Gregory, dau John; prob rem to Danbury
v. Daniel, of Norwalk;, m Mary Marvin; rem ¢ 1690 to Danbury
vi. Betty, m John Slawson of Stamford, Ct
vii. MARY; m 11 Nov 1670, John Olmsted of Norwalk [NEHGR says 17 July 1673]
viii. Sarah; m 19 Dec 1679, James Beebe of Stratford
ix. Rebecca; m Dr Samuel Wood He was married to Mary + BRIDGEHAM about 1640,

1987. Mary + BRIDGEHAM.

1992, William + COMSTOCK (Emlg) was bom about 1585 in Devon 7. He died about 1673 in New London ? Ct. Refs:
John Insley Coddington, "Pedigree of the Platt Family” in *The American Genealogist,” vol 31, pp 167-168; also Cyrus B
Comstock, A Comstock Geneslogy,” New York, 1907, pp 2-4.

William Comstock, b England, d Connecticut, m Elizabeth

Cyrus Comstock says there is mention in 8 Wethersfield, Ct, land record of 28 Feb 1641 of “the lands of William Comstock
which he purchased of Ric. Milles lying in Wethersfield on Connecticut River.” He goes on to say that "beginning in 1635 and
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1636 there was a considerable emigration from Watertown, Mass., and its vicinity to Wethersfield, Windsor, and Hartford, Ct.,
and William Comstock may have been among the emigrants,* Henry R Stiles, in his "History of Wethersfield," (Hartford, Ct,
1892), Cyrus Comstock continues, "ssys we may be pretty sure that Williarn Comstock wes among the 26 from Wethersfield,
Ct., in the expedition commanded by Capt. John Mason which captured the Pequot Fort at Mystic, Ct., 26 May, 1637, killing
about 500 Indians.”

Among other particulars, Comstock adds, *William Comstock at New London town meeting 10 Nov., 1650, voted to
cooperate with John Winthrop in erecting a com mill... Old goodman Comstock was chosen sexton to order youth in the
meeting, etc,, 25 Feb., 1662, the title ‘old goodman’ would indicate a birth as early as 1590."

Children generaily placed in the family of William Comstock:

i. John, d Lyme, Ct, 1680; m Abigail
ii. Sarmuel, d Providence, R1, ¢ 1660; m Ann
iii. Daniel, d New London, Ct, 1683; m Palatia Elderkin
iv. CHRISTOPHER, d 28 Dec 1702, m Hannah Platt
v. Elizabeth, d July 1659; m Jan 1651, Edward Shipton of Saybrook, Ct

Absolute proof of the children's parentage may never come forth, but it may be of interest to note what Cytus Comstock has to
say:

*That William had children John and Daniel, is shown by a deed of 4 Dec., 1694 in which William (3) Comstock of Lyme (son
of John (2) of Lyme) and Daniel (3) Comstock of New London, convey 'land at Nyentik which said land was given to our
grand father William Comstock deceased, by the town of New London,' 20 acres. The same 20 A. were granted by New
London to William Comstock 21 June, 1647, Savage, (Genealogical History of New England’) says John Comstock who was
at Weymouth, Mass., in 1639, sat down at Saybrock, east part, now Lyme, Mr, S, C. Newman states that Daniel Comstock
moved from Providence to New London. Daniel Comstock of Providence, 19 Feb., 1645, accepts from Providence a free
grant of 25 A. ofiand. The 24 of June, 1648, Daniel Comstock with other young men were arrested in Providence for giving a
false Indian alerm. In 1660 Daniel Comstock was paid twenty shillings by New London for killing a wolf toward Mohegan.
The facts that Samuel and Daniel had adjoining lots in Providence; that Samuel named a son Daniel; that Daniel named a son
Samuel; that William (1) and a Samnel were both in the jurisdiction of Hartford in 1648; that the Samuel who was in the
Sybendo expedition in 1653 ... was in that year both in New London and Rhode Island; give rise to the presumption that
Samuel (2) of Providence was the son of William (1) of New London."

Of particular interest is Christopher Comstock of Fairfield, later of Norwalk, Ct. Comstock writes, "Christopher ... made an
affidavit about visiting good wife Knapp, charged with being a witch, at New Haven, 29 May 1654. He named three of his
children Elizabeth, Daniel, and Samue), these being the names of the wife and two sons of William (1) Comstock of New
London. William (1) and Christopher (2) were both in Connecticut in 1654, These facts suggest that Christopher (2) was a son
of William (1)...

"These are the reasons for supposing that John Comstock of Weymouth, Mass,, and Lyme, Ct.; Samuel Comstock of
Providence, R. I.; Daniel Comstock of Providence, R. L., and New London, Ct.; and Christopher Comstock of Fairfield, Ct.,
and Norwalk, Ct., were sons of William Comstock of New London."

See also in this program the biographical account given for Christopher Comstock by John Insley Coddington (op cit).

1994. Richard+PLATT (Emlg) wes bomn about 1604 in Ware, Hertfordshire, He emigrated in 1638/39. He died about Jan
1684/85 in Milford, CT. He was married to Mary + WOOD (Emig) on 26 Jan 1628/29 in Roydon, Essex.

1995. Mary + WOOD (Emig) was bomn about 1605 in Roydon, Essex. She emigrated in 1638/39. She died in Mar 1675/76 in
Milford, CT.

1996. John + BRINSMADE (Emig) was bom in 1617 in England. He emigrated in 1637 from England. He diedin 1673in
Stratford, CT. Ref Inter alin, Donald Lines Jacobus, "Families of Old Fairfield,” vol 1, pp 102-103.

John Brinsmade, b England, 1617, d Stratford, Ct, 1673; m Mary Carter, dau Thomas Carter. John came to America, seftling in
Charlestown, MA, st least by 1636, and was made freemnan, 2 May 1638, He later removed to Stratford, where he served as a
deputy to the Connecticut Legislature, Oct 1671, May and Oct 1672.
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Agreement of heirs of John Brinsmade of Stratford was signed, 3 Nov 1673. He left widow Mary; sons John, Daniel, Paut, anc
Samuel; daus Mary Bostwick and Elizabeth Brinsmade. (It was signed also by John Bostwick;, Mary did not sign.) The
inventory was valued at £519, and shows he was a blacksmith, owned land at Stratford and Derby, and had about 60 books.

Children of John Brinsmade and Mary Carter, recorded at Charlestown:

.‘
i. Mary, b 24 July 1640, d Stratford, 1704; m(1) John Bostwick, m(2) aft 1689, William Read of Fairfield

ii John, b 2 Mar 1642/3
ifi. DANIEL, be 1644, d Norwalk, Ct, Oct 1702; mc 1683, Sareh Kellogg, dan Daniel Kellogg of Norwalk

iv. Paul
v. Samuel
vi. Elizabeth

He was married to Mary + CARTER about 1639 in Charlestown, MA.

1997. Mary + CARTER.

1998. Dantel + KELLOGG (Emlg) was bom in 1630 in Great Leighs, Herts. He was christened on 6 Feb 1630 in Great
Leighs, Herts. He died in 1688 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Timothy Hopkins, "The Kelloggs in the Old World and the New," San
Francisco, 1903; pp 31, 33.

Daniel Kellogg, bap Great Leighs, Herts, 6 Feb 1630, d Norwalk, Ct, 1688, m prob Norwalk, c 1658, Bridget Bouton, d 1689,
dau John Bouton & Alice

*It is not known," writes Hopkins, "when he came to New England, but it is probable that he came with his brother Joseph.
He was one of the early settlers of Norwelk, which was incorperated 11 Sept., 1651, and his name appears in the list of 'those t
appeare in Towne Meetings' 20 March, 1656, In the first book of Land Records in Norwalk, his home lot is dascribed as four
acres bounded east by Matthew Marvin, Jr.'s, Matthew Marvin, Sen's, and Thomes Fitch, Sen's home lots, west by Joseph
Fenn's home lot and & bank of common land, north, partly by Nathaniet Richard's home lot and by the ‘Coase banck,' south by
town highway. The records of the first grants in Norwalk are interspersed with others from 1670 to 1690. Many of these deed
are without dats. Over some of the records, in another hand is the date 1652.

"]t is said that he was the latgest man of the pioneers, being more than seven feet in height, and ‘of proportionate dimensicns
otherwise.'

*'He was one of Norwalk's antiquity-athletic men. He was muscular and manly. One one occasion he was visiting in his
neighborhood and found that two Indians, who were callers at the same time, had so far forgotten English proprieties as to
have engaged in an angry and violent wrangle within the white man's abode. Mr. Kellogg stepped forward and in a very
business like manner rabbed the heads of the red natives vigorously together and taught them a lesson.’

*He was selectman of Norwalk in 1670; Representative to the General Court, 1670, '72, '74,'75, 77,79, '80 and '83.

"He was on the committee, 23 April, 1673, to camry on the work of building the mesting house. On the 8 Nov., 1681, the
town ordered the committee to remove the desk, seats and planks from the old meeting house to the new, and the town for the
fisture to meet 'in the sayd new meeting house to weight upon the Lord in his divine publique worshippe as opportunitie
presents.’

"At 8 meeting, 25 Dec., 1669, the town voted that 'all the lands within the bounds of Norwalk, that are at present undivided,
shall for fature be divided only to such as are the present proper inhabitants of this town,’ and at a meeting 9 Feb., 1671, it was
voted that 'every one of our inhabitants that have not as yet had any estate for their children shall have five pounds for every
child now in being; to be added to their father's estate, and this is to take place in the land that is now leid out in ye Indian feilc
and not before.'

"In a list of children of the town Feb., 1672, Daniel Kellogg appears to have six. He drew his share of the common lends of
the town, which made him a large landed proprietor.

*In 1672, his estate in Norwalk was valued at £125.

*In 1685 the General Court of Connecticut made an order that every township should take a patent from the Court, ‘for the
holding of such tracts of land ss have been formerly or shall hereafter be granted to them by this Court, etc.! In pursuance of
this order, Norwalk took out 8 patent, dated 8 July, 1686, In this patent, 'Mr. Daniel Kellogg' is named as one of the ‘present
proprietors of the Town of Norwalk'

*The inventory of his estate, made Dec., 1688, was filed 5 March, following, by Bridget Kellogg, his relict. In this, it is statec
that his children were Sarah, Meary and Rachel, who were marmied and away; Elizabeth, about 20 years of age; Danie), 18 next
May; Samue!, 15; Lydia, 13 next April, Benjamnin and Joseph, twins, 11 years old.’

*The eldest son, Danie), to have & double portion 'of the hole estate to be taken out of the housings and lands,’ the other sons
to have twice as much as the daughters. The administrators are ordered to husband and take all prudent care of the estate and
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children; married children to be paid within one year; sons to be paid when 21; unmarried daughters when 18 or upon
marriage.”

Children of Daniel Kellogg and Bridget Bouton, all b Norwalk

L SARAH, b Feb 1659, m(1) Daniel Brinsmade; m(2) John Betts
fi. Mary, b Feb 1661; m Joseph Platt /
iti. Rachel, b Feb 1663; m Abreham Nichols
iv. Elizabeth, b Aug 1666, d unm ¢ 1690
v. Daniel, b 7 May 1671, m
vi. Samuel, b 19 Feb 1673; m(1) Sarah Platt; m(2) Mrs Sareh (Lockwood) Hickok
vii, Lydia, b Apr 1676, m John Clark of Milford
viii. Benjamin, twin, b Mar 1678, d unm 1702. Agreement for the division of his estate 10 Nov 1673, Hopkins says was signec
by Daniel, Samuel, and Joseph Kellogg, Abraham Nichols, John Clark, Mary Platt, widow, and Sarah Brinsmade, widow.
ix. Joseph, twin, b Mar 1678; m(1) Sarah Plum; m(2) Mrs Mary Lyon

He was married to Bridget + BOUTON about 1658 in Norwalk, CT, Donald Lines Jacobus, "Families of Old Fairfield " v 1.
But note also date of birth of first child, Sarah, 1659; from this we would posit a marriage date of ¢ 1658. (RGWS)

1999. Bridget+ BOUTON was born about 1642 in Hartford, CT ?. She died in 1689 in Norwalk, CT.

TWELFTH GENERATION

3840, William + PHELPS (Emig) was bom in 1599 in Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire, England. He was baptized on 19 Aug
1599 in Tewkesbury Abbey Church. He emigrated on 20 Mar 1630 from Plymouth, Devon, England. Sailed in the ship "Mary
and John." He immigrated on 30 May 1630 to Nantasket [Hull], Massachusetts, He died on 14 Jul 1667 in Windsor,
Connecticut. The Phelps Genealogy, 1899, just above its list of children for William Phelps, includes the following poetic
quotation from Pierpont --

"Like Israel's host to exile driven,
Across the sea their Pilgrims fled;

Their hands bore up the ark of Heaven,
And Heaven their trusting footsteps led,

Till on these savage shores they tred,
And won — the Wildemess to God."

William Phelps, bap Tewkesbury, Glos, England, 19 Aug 1599, d Windsor, Ct, 14 July 1672, ae 73; son of Willism & Dorothy
( ) Phelps of Tewkesbury and grandson of James & Joan ( ) Phelps of Tewkesbury and perhaps Nether Tyne,
Staffordshire; m(1) ; m(2) Mary Dover,

Children by first wife, name unknown, (p 85):

t. Richerd, b Tewkesbury, bap 26 Dec 1619. "He sailed for the Barbadoes...with Capt. Burch and Gilbert Grimes, then
unmarried; all we know of him."
ii. William, b England ¢ 1620; m(1) Isabel Wilson; m(2) Sarzh Pinney
iii. Sarsh, b England ¢ 1623; m William Wade
iv. Samuel, b England ¢ 1625; m Sarah Griswold
v. Nathaniel, b England ¢ 1627; m Elizabeth Copley [widow]
vi. Joseph, b England ¢ 1629; m(1) Hanneh Newton; m(2) Mary Salmen

Children by second wife, Mary Dover, (p 86):

vii.. TIMOTHY, b Windsor, Ct, 1 Sept 1639; m Mary Griswold
viii. Mary, b Windsor, 2 Mar 1644; m Thomas Barber

*Soon after the birth of his first child (and the death of his father) he probably removed to one of the southern counties, either
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Somerset or Dorsetshire, as after the birth of his first child we find no reference to him in Tewkesbury, nor do we find any
record of the birth of his five other children.

"M, Phelps, his wife, six children, and brother George, then unmarried, emigrated to New England in the ship Mary and John,
of four hundred tons burden, commanded by Captain Squeb, with one hundred and forty passengers. This company had been
organized into a church and selected their ministers the day before sailing...

r

“They sailed from Plymouth, England, March 20th, 1630, amiving and landing at Nantasket, now Hull, Mass., May 30th, 1630.
*This company settled in Dorchester, Mass., the first settlers and founders of that place.

"Dorchester claims the honor of being the first town in the Massachusetts Colony to organize a town govemment.

*Mr. Phelps took an active position in town matters, and during the first six months was made a freeman...”

He was married to Mary + DOVER about 1638.
3841. Mary+DOVER.

3842. Edward+ GRISWOLD resided in Killingworth, Connecticut.

3848. William + PHELPS (Emlg) was bom in 1599 in Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire, England. He was baptized on 19 Aug
1599 in Tewkesbury Abbey Church. He emigrated on 20 Mer 1630 from Plymouth, Devon, England. Sailed in the ship *"Mary
and John." He immigrated on 30 May 1630 to Nantasket [Hull], Messachusetts. He died on 14 Jul 1667 in Windsor,
Connecticut. The Phelps Genealogy, 1899, just above its list of children for William Phelps, includes the following poetic
quotation from Pierpont —

"Like Israel's host to exile driven,
Across the sea their Pilgrims fled;

Their hands bore up the ark of Heaven,
And Heaven their trusting footsteps led;

Till on these savage shores they trod,
And won -- the Wilderness to God."

Williarn Phelps, bap Tewkesbury, Glos, England, 19 Aug 1599, d Windsor, Ct, 14 July 1672, ae 73; son of William & Dorothy
( ) Phelps of Tewkesbury and grandson of James & Joan ( ) Phelps of Tewkesbury and perhaps Nether Tyne,
Staffordshire; m(1) ; m(2) Mary Dover.

Children by first wife, name unknown, (p 85):

i Richerd, b Tewkesbury, bap 26 Dec 1619. “He sailed for the Barbadoes...with Capt, Burch and Gilbert Grimes, then
unmarried; all we know of him.”
il. William, b England ¢ 1620; m(1) Isabel Wilson; m(2) Sarah Pinney
iit. Sarah, b England ¢ 1623; m Williarn Wade
iv. Samuel, b England ¢ 1625, m Sarah Griswold
v. Nathaniel, b England ¢ 1627, m Elizabeth Copley [widow)
vi. Joseph, b England ¢ 1629; m(1) Hannah Newton; m(2) Mary Salmon

Children by second wife, Mary Dover, (p 86);

vii. TIMOTHY, b Windsor, Ct, 1 Sept 1639; m Mary Griswold
viii. Mary, b Windsot, 2 Mar 1644; m Thomas Barber

*Soon after the birth of his first child (and the death of his father) he probably removed to one of the southemn counties, either
Somerset or Dorsetshire, as after the birth of his first child we find no reference to him in Tewkesbury, nor do we find any
record of the birth of his five other children.
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*Mr. Phelps, his wife, six children, and brother George, then unmaried, emigrated to New England in the ship Mary and John,
of four hundred tons burden, commanded by Captain Squeb, with one hundred and forty passengers. This company had been
organized into a church and selected their ministers the day before sailing...

"They sailed from Plymouth, England, Merch 20th, 1630, artiving and landing at Nantasket, now Hull, Mass., May 30th, 1630,
"This company settled in Dorchester, Mass., the first settlers and founders of that place.

"Dorchester claims the honor of being the first town in the Massachusetts Colony to organize a town govemment.

"Mr. Phelps took an active position in town matters, and during the first six months was mede a freeman...”

He was married to Mary + DOVER sbout 1638.

3849, Mary+ DOVER.
3850. Edward + GRISWOLD resided in Killingworth, Connecticut.

3852. Thomas + BARBER (Emig) was bom in 1613/14 in Bedfordshire ? England. He died on 11 Sep 1662 in Windsor,
Connecticut. Ref Donald S Barber, “The Connecticut Barbers,” 1992

THOMAS BARBER, emigrant, b Bedfordshire ? England, 1613/14, d Windsor, Ct, 11 Sept 1662; m Windsor ? Ct, 7 Oct 1640,
Jane , d Windsor, 10 Sept 1662, Children of Thomas and Jane, all b Windsor;

i. John, bap 24 July 1642; m(1) Bathsheba Coggin, m(2) Mrs Hannah (Gardner) Bancroft
ii. Thomas, bap 13 July 1644; m Mary Phelps
iii. Sarah, bap 19 July 1646; m Windsor, 26 Nov 1663, Timothy Hale
iv. SAMUEL, bap 1 Oct 1648; m(1) Mary Coggins; m(2) Ruth Drake
v. Mary (Mercy), bap 12 Oct 1651, d Suffield, Ct, 29 Mar 1725; m(1) Windsor, 8 July 1669, John Gillett; m(2) 14 June 1683,
Capt George Norton
vi. Josiah, bap 15 Feb 1653; m Abigail Loomis

Barber writes (op cit), "Before coming to New England, Thomas was apprenticed under Francis Stiles, a master carpenter from
Millbrook, Bedfordshire, England. Stiles was contracted by Sir Richerd Seltonstall to build houses in America for Englishmen
who were to follow. Thomas Barber at the age of 21 was among the twenty apprentices plus others who sailed with Stiles for
New England in the ship ‘Christian' (John White, Master), which left London 16 Mar 1634 (Julian Calendar), and armrived 3
months later in Boston June 1635.

*Each of the passengers had a certificate which read in part: 'with certificate from St. Mildred, Bread Street, London, and
having taken the oaths, to be transported to New England from London in the Christian' (from the Public Record Office,
Westminster Hall, London).

" After 10 days at Boston the Christian sailed up the Connecticut River o Windsor, arriving there on the first of July 1635.
That same year Thomas was granted a lot of a few acres, extending from Mill Brook, near the old Warham gristmill, north
along both sides of Poquonock Avenue, The suthor's father was bom on this same land, and my brother, sister, and I were
brought up on this, the original land grant. After 330 years of continuous Barber ownership, the land has now all been sold.

*The Pequot War in 1637, precipitated by the Pequot Indians by their continnal haressment of both the settiers and the
fiiendly Mohegans, found Thomas, a Sergeant, one of 30 soldiers from Windsor under the leadership of Captein John Mason.
The night attack was a complete surprise to the Pequots, and a large percentage of the tribe was massacred. Thomas Barber's
bravery (he was inside the Pequot Fort at Mystic during the attack), gained him honorable mention from Capt. Mason, and in
retum for this service, in 1641 he was granted 600 acres of land in Massaco, in the westem part of Windsor. Massaco became
Simsbury in 1669.

"The year 1645 found Thomas still an apprentice carpenter. Stiles apparently was slow to finish Thomas's apprenticeship,
end needed a court order to force him to do so.

*From then on Thomas was a free man. At the time of his death in 1662, Thomas was msking preparations to move to
Northampton, MA.

*There were a multitude of Barber families in Bedfordshire and other parts of England in the 1500's and 1600's, several
including Thomases, leaving us uncertain to this day about Thomas's ancestry. A deeper mystery surrounds Jane, his wife, He
married her in 1640, but the record gives only the name Jans or Joan. Two of Thomas's sons married Coggin ladies, but there
is no sign that Jane was a Coggin, as some have suggested. One of Francis Stiles' sisters was named Jane, born 1605. She
married in England and presumably remained there. There was a Jane Morden or Worden, age 35, on the passenger list of the



Book of Ancestors 17 Aug 195¢
Christian; however I know nothing further sbout her. It seems she was too old to have bome all of Thomas's children.

*Coggin, Stiles, Morden, Worden, or someone else; there seems as yet no way of knowing (an all too frequent problem in
Geneelogy). [Ref Barber Gen; Barbour IX:d; Barber Gen #7)."

He was married to Jane + { BARBER ] on 7 Oct 1640 in Windsor, Connecticut.
3853. Jane-+ [ BARBER ] was bom about 1620 in England. She died on 10 Sep 1662 in Windsor, Connecticut.
3854. John+ DRAKE.

3855. Hannah + MOORE.

3856. Thomsas+ BARBER (Emlig) was bom in 1613/14 in Bedfordshire ? England. He died on 11 Sep 1662 in Windsor,
Comnecticut. Ref Donsald S Barber, "The Connecticut Barbers,” 1992

THOMAS BARBER, emigrant, b Bedfordshire ? England, 1613/14, d Windsor, Ct, 11 Sept 1662; m Windsor ? Ct, 7 Oct 1640
Jane , d Windsor, 10 Sept 1662. Children of Thomas and Jene, all b Windsor:
i John, bap 24 July 1642; m(1) Bathsheba Coggin; m(2) Mrs Hannah (Gardner) Bancroft

ii. Thomas, bap 13 July 1644; m Mary Phelps

ifi. Sarah, bap 19 July 1646; m Windsor, 26 Nov 1663, Timothy Hale

iv. SAMUEL, bap 1 Oct 1648; m(1) Mary Coggins; m(2) Ruth Drake

v. Mary (Mercy), bap 12 Oct 1651, d Suffield, Ct, 29 Mar 1725; m(1) Windsor, 8 July 1669, John Gillett, m(2) 14 June 1683,
Capt George Norton

vi. Josiah, bap 15 Feb 1653; m Abigail Loomis

Barber writes (op cit), "Before coming to New England, Thomas was apprenticed under Francis Stiles, a master carpenter fron
Millbrook, Bedfordshire, England. Stiles was contracted by Sir Richard Saltonstall to build houses in America for Englishmer
who were to follow. Thomas Barber at the age of 21 was among the twenty apprentices plus others who sailed with Stiles for
New England in the ship 'Christian' (John White, Master), which left London 16 Mar 1634 (Julian Calendar), and arrived 3
moenths later in Boston June 1635.

"Each of the passengers had a certificate which read in part: ‘with certificate from St. Mildred, Bread Street, London, and
having taken the oaths, to be transported to New England from London in the Christian’ (from the Public Record Office,
Westminster Hall, London).

* After 10 days at Boston the Christian sailed up the Connecticut River to Windsor, armiving there on the first of July 1635.
That same year Thomas was granted a lot of a few acres, extending from Mill Brook, near the old Warham gristmill, north
along both sides of Poquonock Avenue, The author's father was bormn on this same land, and my brother, sister, and I were
brought up on this, the original land grant After 330 years of continuous Barber ownership, the land has now all been sold.

*The Pequot Wer in 1637, precipitated by the Pequot Indians by their continual harassment of both the settlers and the
friendly Mohegans, found Thomas, a Sergeant, one of 30 soldiers from Windsor under the leadership of Captain John Mason
The night attack was a complete surprise to the Pequots, and a large percentage of the tribe was massacred. Thomas Barber's
bravery (he was inside the Pequot Fort at Mystic during the attack), gained him honorable mention from Capt Mason, and in
return for this service, in 1641 he was granted 600 acres of land in Massaco, in the western part of Windsor. Massaco became
Simsbury in 1669.

*The year 1645 found Thomas still an apprentice carpenter. Stiles apparently was slow to finish Thomas's apprenticeship,
and needed a court order to force hirn to do so.

"From then on Thomas was a free man. At the ime of his death in 1662, Thomas was making preparations to move to
Northampton, MA.

"There were & multitude of Barber families in Bedfordshire and other parts of England in the 1500's and 1600's, several
including Thomases, leaving us uncertain to this day about Thomas's ancestry. A deeper mystery sumounds Jane, his wife. H
married her in 1640, but the record gives only the name Jane or Joan, Two of Thomas's sons mamied Coggin ladies, but there
is no sign that Jane was & Coggin, as some have suggested. One of Francis Stiles' sisters was named Jane, bom 1605. She
married in England and presumably remained there. There was a Jane Morden or Worden, ege 35, on the passenger list of the
Christian; however I know nothing further about her. It seems she was too old to have bome all of Thomas's children.

“Coggin, Stiles, Morden, Worden, or someone else: there seems as yet no way of knowing (an all too frequent problem in
Genealogy). [Ref Barber Gen; Barbour IX:d; Barber Gen #7]."
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He was married to Jane + [ BARBER ] on 7 Oct 1640 in Windsor, Connecticut,
3857. Jane+|[ BARBER | was born about 1620 in England. She died on 10 Sep 1662 in Windsor, Connecticut.

3B58. John + DRAKE.
’

3859, Hannak +MOORE.

3882. Thomas+ UPSON (Emig) was bom about 1614 in England. He died on 19 Jul 1655 in Farmington, Ct. Possibly
brother to Stephen Upson, who came on the "Increase” from London, 1635, ae 23, (Cf Savage et al))

Thomas Upson, b England, poss ¢ 1614, d Farmington, Ct, 19 July 1655. He m(1) possibly in England, ;m(2)
Hartford, Ct, 23 Jan 1646, Elizabeth EEB. who herself m(2) Edmund Scott. The first two children, Mary and Thomas, were,

states the "Upson Family in America,” (New Haven, 1940), possibly by the first wife, the others - Hannah, Elizabeth, and
Stephen - all by the second wife and born in Farmington:

Children, possibly by (1), birthplace not known:

i. MARY, "eldast daughter™, m John Welton; 12 chn
ii. Thomas, "eldest son," d Saybrook, Ct, 9 Dec 1672; unm

Children by (2), b Farmington:

iii. Hanneh; m Sgt Samuel Hickox; 11 chn
iv. Elizabeth, d y, Farmington, 20 July 1655 (day after her father)
v. Stephen, be 1650; m Meary Lee; 8 chn

3884. Walter + GAYLORD (Emig) wes born in 1626 in Somerset. He died on 9 Aug 1689 in Windsor, Connecticut. Walte
Gaylord, b Somerset, Engl, 1626, d Windsor, Ct, 9 Aug 1689, s William Gaylord; m(1) Hariford, 29 Apr 1648, Mary Stebbing,
be 1630, d Windsor, 9 Aug 1689, dau Edward & Frances (Tough) Stebbing; m(2) Windsor, 22 Mar 1657/8, Sarah, dsu Wm
Rockwell, of Windsor, who d 7 Aug 1683.

Issue by (1):
i. JOSEPH, b 13 May 1649; d Durham, CT, 2 Feb 1711/12; m 14 July 1670, Sarah Stenley, qv
fi. Mary, b 19 Mar 1650/1, m John Day, s Robert & Editha (Stebbing) Day, be 1645, d Hartford, 1730. (He m(2) Sarah Butle
5 chn by (1), 4 chn by (2). See Jacobus & Waterman, "Hale, House ....," p 511)
ifi. Joanna, b 5 Feb 1652/3; m at Windsor, 16 Dec 1699, John <3> Porter of Windsor (John <2>, John <1>)
iv. Benjamin, b 12 Apr 1655, d bef 5 Feb 1690/1; m (prob) Ruth Williams
v. Isanc, b 21 June 1657, d (prob) Windsor, 1674
Issue by (2), at least:

vi. Eleazer, b 7 Mar 1661/2; m Martha Thompson
vii. Sareh, b 13 Apr 1665; m William Phelps

Ref: Amer Genealogist 30:193ff (1954)
He was married to Mary + STEBBRINS on 29 Apr 1648 in Hartford, CT.

3885. Mary+ STEBBINS was bom about 1630, She died on 30 Jun 1657 in Windsor, Connecticut. Ref American
Genealogist, 30:193fF (1954)

Mary Stebbing, be 1630, d Windsor, Ct, 30 June 1657, dau Edward & Frances (Tough) Stebbing, m Hartford, Ct, 29 Apr 1648
Waelter Gaylord, b Somerset, 1626, d Windsor, 9 Ang 1689, s William Gaylord of Windsor. For children, see entry for Walter
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Gaylord.

3888. John+ ARNOLD (Emig) was born about 1585 in England. He died in Dec 1664 in Hartford, CT. Ref John Wesley
Amold, MD, "A Connecticut Amold Memorial,” Long Beach, CA, 1990; James Savage, "Genealogical Dictionary,” Boston,
1860-2,

John Amold, b England ¢ 1585, d Hartford, Ct, Dec 1664; m Susanna . He lived, writes Amold, on the south side of
Winthrop between Brighton (now Boylston) & Eliot, two blocks from Harvard Square, Cambridge, 1635. Was a freeman.
Arrived in America, 1634; came with Thomas Hooker to found Hartford in 1635. Susanna was a member of the Second
Church of Christ, Hartford, 1670. John is probably buried in the ancient burying ground behind the First Church of Christ, 60
Gold Street. He is listed on the Founders Monument Children:

i Josiah; a freeman, Hartford, May 1657, living, 1680-3
il Joseph, b England, c 1625
fii. DANIEL, b 1640
iv. John 7 May have lived in Killingworth, Ct
v. Susanna

He was married to Susanna + [ ARNOLD ].
3889. Susanna+ [ ARNOLD }.
3890, James + OSBORNE.
3892. Thomas + RICHARDS resided in 1639 in Hartford, CT.

3894. John -+ ANDREWS resided about 1645 in Hartford, CT. Ref James Savage, "Genealogical Dictionary," Boston,
1860-2.

John Andrews, of Farmington, Ct, "one of the first settled freemen, 1658." By his wife Mary ,hehad

i Mary, b 1643, bap 16 May 1658, m Bames
fi. John, b 1645, bap 16 May 1658, prob rem to Hartford
iii. HANNAH, b 1647, bap 16 Mey 1658; m Obadiah Richards
iv. Abmaham, b 1648, bap 2 Apr 1654
v. Daniel, b 1650, bap 2 Apr 1654
vi. Joseph, b 1652, bap 2 Apr 1654
vii. Rachel, bap 9 Apr 1654, m Buck
viii. Stephen, b 1656
ix. Benjamin, b 1659, d 1682

Savage says, "Why all [the children] were not bapt. at once, may be left to plausible conject.”
He was married to Mary + [ ANDREWS ] about 1642 in Parmington, Ct 7.
3895. Mary +[ ANDREWS ] was born about 1622.

3994, Thomas+ CARTER. Ref Donald Lines Jacobus, *Families of Old Fairfield,” vol 1, p 102, says Mary Carter was dau
of Thomas. {More research is needed here.)

3996. Martin + KELLOGG was bom in 1595 in Great Leighs, Herts. He died in 167} in Braintree, Essex. Ref Timothy
Hopkins, “The Kelloggs in the Old World and the New,” Sen Francisco, 1903, pp 13 f£

Martin Kallogg, bap Great Leighs, Herts, 23 Nov 1595, d Braintree, Essex, betw 20 May 1671 (date of will) and 20 Sept 1671
(will's proving), son of Phillippe; m at St Michael's Church, Bishop's Stortford, Hexts, 22 Oct 1621, Prudence Bird.

Hopkins says Martin (who did not emigrate to New England) wes a weaver or cloth worker who resided at Great Leighs and
Breintree. Various legal documents ("surrenders” of rights, acres, and tenements) are presented helping to show where the
Kelloggs were living, and which, incidentally, contain references to names of other ancestors common to Richard F Schubert
and R G Windsor Spellman - most particularly, Deacon Edward Stebbing for Stebbins], in Cambridge, Mass., by 1633 and an
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original propristor of Hartford, 1636, and Richard Skinner, also an original proprietor of Hartford and also from Braintreel
Hopkins provides the following excerpts:

"Wheress at the Court on Monday in Easter week, 11 James I, A.D. 1613, Joseph Mann surrendered one acre and a half of
land, parcel of a croft called Harold's Croft, lying at Minche's Oak, on which same land a messuage had been lately built. To
the use of Mark Stebbing and Mary his wife for their lives, and then to Edward Stebbing, their son and his heirs. Now Mark,
Mary, and Edward are admitted..... '

* Afterwards the said Mark, Mary and Edward and Thomas Stebbing, another son, surrendered all their right in the aforesaid
premises after the death of Mary Bead, formerly wife of Michael Mann, to the use of Robert Kellog and his heirs, and the same
Robert is admitted.

» Afterwards Robert Kellogg surrendered one tenement in the occupation of the said Thomas Stebbing and two small cottages
to the same adjoining part of the property which the said Robert purchased of Edward and Thomas Stebbing, to the use and
behoof of Martin Kellogg and Prudence, his wife, and the heirs of the said Martin forever, which same Martin and Prudence
are admitted.”

In 1637, Hopkins cantinues, Martin Kellogg received the surender of a parcel of land with a cottage called Masses as appears
from the following extract from the same Court Rolls. Part of this cottage is still standing [1903] in what is "Martin's Yard.”

"Whereas at the Court held 13 Aprl, 13 Charles 1, A.D. 1637, Richard Skinner was admitted on the surrender of Richard
Sparhawke, amongst other things, to one parcel of land conteining by estimation nine perches upon which 2 cottage has been
Iately built with part of a pond celled a Fuller's Pond, etc. It is now that on the 8th of April last (Le. A.D. 1641) the said Skinner
had surrendered the premises, by the name of one customary cottage celled ‘Masses,' otherwise ‘Masse's tenement’ (then in the
tenure of John Gowell or Cowell) o the use and behoof of Martin Kellhogg of Braintree, weaver, and his heirs. The same
Martin is admitted.”

Hopkins tells us that on 3 Apr 1648 Martin swrendered a part of this tenement to his son John, as would appear from an
extract under his name. Martin appeared in the Archbishop's Court at Braintree, 1639 and 1640, in company with the parish
vicar, and we may presume on this basis Martin was one of the church wardens.

Martin made his wilt, 20 May 1671, which was as follows (original spelling):

*IN THE NAME OFF GOD AMEN this 20ty day of May in the yeare of our Lord 1671 I, MARTIN KELLOCKE of Braintree
in the county of Essex Weauer beinge sicke in bodie but of a perfecte memorie praised be god therefor doe make & ordaine
this my last will & testamente in writinge in mannerand forme followinge that is o say First & prinsepally | comend my soule
into the hands of alimighty pod my maker trustinge in the allsufissante merits of Jesus Christe my Sauiour & redemer to
obtaine Eterall Life and Salluation and my bodie vato the earth from whence it came to be decently buried by my Executor
which shall be herafter nomenated & appointed Item I giue and bequesth vnto Sareh my daughter the wife of William Jacob
fine pounde lawfull money of England to ne paide within on yeare After my decease Item 1 giue vnto my grandchiid John
Kellocke twenty shillings to be paid vato him within two years after my deceasse Item I giue & bequeath unto my sone Joseph
Kellocke of new England twenty shillings to be paide to him within on yeare after my deceass Item I giue and bequeath vato
my sone Daniell Kellocke of new England fiue pound lawfull monie of England to be paid vnto him within two years after my
deceasse Item I giue & bequeath vnto my sone Nathanell Kellocke all my goods in my best chamber & my little copper and alt
my wearinge apparrell to be delinered to him prsent After my deceasse Item I giue vnto my sone Martin Kellocke my coppie
holid housse wherin I now dwell with the yerd and garden & with all and singuler the appurtenances therunto belonginge & my
coppie hold tennemente wherein John Watts now dwelleth with all the appurtenances therunto belonginge and my paler that ]
now holld in my own hands whome I doe nomenate & appointe make and ordaine to be my wholle and sole executor to se my
will fullfilld & prformed accordinge to the tru meaninge & intente of it and 1 doe make ordaine & declare this to be my very
last will and testemente Reuokinge all other wills formesly by me made either in worde or writinge in witness wherof I herunto
set my hand & sealle the day & yeare first aboue written - The marke of MARTIN M KELLOCKE (LS) Read signed sealled
published and declared to be the last will and testament of the testator in the prsence of us — Signed JOHN D DEWDAT
Senor — DANIELL CLARKE.

Proved at Braintree 20th September 1671..."

Children of Martin Kellogg and Prudence Bird:
L John, d bef 27 Mar 1654; m Susan __, also d bef 27 Mar 1654; left son John, ae 5

ii. Nathaniel, bap Gt Leighs, 12 Mar 1624, d bef 6 Apr 1702; m Elizabeth
ifi. Josef [spelling in parish register], bap Gt Leighs, } Apr 1626; rem to New England
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iv. Sarah, bap Gt Leighs, 1 Feb 1628, m Wiltiam Jacobs
v. DANIEL, bap Gt Leighs, 6 Feb 1630, m Bridget Bouton; rem to New England

vi. Samuel, b prob Braintres, _; rem to New England

vii. Martin, b prob Braintree, bur Braintree, 29 Jan 1685; m Elizabeth

‘
He was married to Prudence + BIRD on 22 Oct 1621 in Bishop's Stortford, Herts. St. Michael's Church, Bishop's Stortford,

parish register.

3997. Prudence + BIRD died before 20 May 1671. Timothy Hopkins, "The Kelloggs in the Old World and the New,” San

Francisco, 1903, (page 13) says Prudence was dau John & Prudence ( ) Bird (or Burde) of Bishop's Stortford,
Hertfordshire, and gives an abstract of John Bird's will mentioning both his wife, his daughter Prudence, and other children.

3998, John+BOUTON 1 (Emlg) was bom about 1615, Meredith Colket, *Founders & Patriots: Founders of Early
American Families,” Cleveland, Ohio, 1885. He emigrated in Jul 1635 from Gravesend, England, on the Assurance. He died
before 1647 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Donald Lines Jacobus, *Famities of Old Fairfield," 1930, vo! 1, p 94; see also, Meredith
Colket, "Founders of Early American Families,” Cleveland, 1985.

John Bouton, b England ¢ 1615, d Norwalk, Ct, by 1647, m Alice , b 1610, d Norwalk, 1680; she m(2) 1647, Matthew
Marvin of Norwalk. John emigrated on the Assurance, 1635, settling first at Hartford, then at Norwalk, Ct. His children by
Alice as given by Jacobus (loc cit):

i John, be 1636, d 1707, m(1) Norwalk, 1 Jan 1656, Abigail Marvin, dau Matthew; m(2) afier 1689, wid Jonathan Stevenson,
previously wid Thomas Allen

ii. Richard, d Fairfield, Ct, 1665, m Ruth Tumey, b Concord, MA, 28 Jan 1643/4, d Fairfield, 1666, dau Benjamin Tumey
iii, BRIDGET, b prob Hartford, Ct, ¢ 1642; m Norwalk, 1665, Daniel Kellogg

He was married to Alice [ BOUTON ] about 1635.

3999, Alice | BOUTON ] was bom sbout 1610. She died about Dec 1680 in Norwalk, CT. Ref Jacobus, "Families of Old
Fairfield,” vol 1, p 94; William T R Marvin, "Matthew Marvin and His Second Wife, Widow Alice Bouton,” in NEHGR,
51:330 (Tuly 1897).

Alice, be 1610, dc Dec 1680; m(1) John Bouton of Norwalk; m(2) ¢ 1647, Matthew Marvin.
The NEHGR (loc cif) gives an abstract of her will, as follows:

Will of "Alce Marvin of Norwocke.....being aged seaventee years or thereabouts.”
*Imprimis, I doe will and bequeath the stm of twenty pounds to my sonn John Bowton and to my daughter Bridgit Killock, to
be equelly devided between thos two: That is to say, ten pounds apiece.”
*Itemn, I doe give after my decease, to my daughter Briggit Kellock my scarfe and my best cloath waskcot and my best serg
coat and my best green apron and the best of my two under cotten coats end my spectacles.”
"Item, I doe give unto my daughter Abigal Bowton my best hat and my best cloke and my serge wastcoats and my under
cotten wastcoat and a pair of lether gloves, 2 brass small wayts.”
*Item, I doe give to my daughter Rachell Smith my penne [stone?] coat and my flannel wastcoat, and to my grandchild Sareh
Brinsmead my Cheast; and to my grandchild Ruth Bowton my brass kettle 3 old pewter dishes and a brass Chafendish and a
gilpot; and to my grandchild Rachsll Bowion my Bible.”
Remainder: *my will is shall be devided between my two dafter Brigget Keflock and Rachell Smith. The hetchell my will is,
hatf to my sonn John Bowton and half to my daughter Brigget Keliock,” etc.

Witnesses: RICH OLMSTEED, CHRISTO. COMSTOCKE.

The Marke of
ALCE X MARVIN
Dated December 1, 1680. Inventory, "Last of January, 1680. (1681). Amount: 36.2.8

THIRTEENTH GENERATION

7768. Deacon William + GAYLORD (Emig) was bom sbout 1585 in Somerset. He resided in 1629 in Crewkerne, Somerset
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Inter alia, Robert Charles Anderson, *The Great Migration,” vol Ii, Boston, 1995; p 739 £ He emigrated in 1630 from From
England, on the *“Mary & John". He died on 20 Jul 1673 in Windsor, Connecticut. Refs: Henry R Stiles, "Genealogies and
Biographies of Ancient Windsor,” Hartford, Ct, 1892. See also, William Geillard, "History and Pedigree of the House of
Gaillard, or Gaylord, in France, England, and the U.S.; 2 nos, pamphlets, pub Cincinnati, Ohio. (The first of these numbers,
says Stiles, is comprised of 25 pages devoted and history of the family in Normandy, their emigration to Glastonbury,
Somerset, thence to Devon, and finally to New England; the second - pp 25-58 - contains the American genealogy, "not in all
respects accurate,”) '

Deacon William Gaylord, b England ¢ 1585, d Windsor, Ct, 20 July 1673, ae 88; m (prob) Elizabeth , d Windsor, 20 June
1657. An emigrant on the "Mary & John," 1630.

Stiles' account is as follows (op cit, p 278); "William (Dea.), prob. of first Dorchester emig., 1630 (acc. to the ‘House of
Gaillard," he was accompanied by & bro. John, who is supp. to have ret. to Eng); ore of the first deacons of the Dor. ch; with
Dea. Sem't Rockwell, signad the first Dor. 1d. grants; had ids. there, 1633; deputy and selectman, 1635; removed to W(indsor],
1638 - Note to p. 136, Letchford’s Note-Bk. Trans.-Am. Antiq. Soc., vii.: see pp. 156, 545, 546, Vol. 1. "25 Dec., 1654, William
Gaylord, the Elder, hath granted from the Plantation his home-lott with additions to it and his dwelling-house upon it, and
contains in it one and Twenty acres, more or less, and is bord. by John Haynes on the N., and S. by John Hoskins; on the E. by
the meadow; on the W, by Stephen Town's half lott.... Over the Great River, by a second allotment and in part by purchis, the
bredth by the Great River, fifty Eight Rods in Length from said Great River back into the East three miles, and is bord. by said
John Haynes N. and Humphrey Pinney $.' 28 June, 1654, 'William Gaylord, the Elder, and John Gaylord, joynt purchisers
with William Gaylord, the younger, and Mr, Thomas Hosford of Norwalke, a parcell of land East side Great River (which
pertained to Hannah Nubrey, his wife), in bredth, 40 rods; length from Great River, 3 miles; bd. N. by Samuel Gaylord; S. by
Anthony Hawkins, Arthur Williams, and Walter Gaylord, the younger, also bds. S, by Jacob Drake; runs E. from Great River,
and runs over & comer of Scantic and takes the river within the line.! Dea. G. was elected memb. of the Gen. Ct. at 41
semi-annual sessions in W. - more than any other thus honored (Sidney Stenley). Dea. Gaylord d. at W., 20 July 1673, ae, 88
(O.C.R.), his wife d. 20 June, 1657."

Children, al b England:

i. Elizabeth; m(1) 5 Oct 1641, Richard Birge, d 1651; m(2) Thomas Hoskins

ii. William, d Windsor, 14 Dec 1656; m(1) 24 Feb 1641, Ann Porter, d 1653; m(2) 9 Feb 1653, Elizabeth Drake, dau John
Drake. Elizabeth m(2) John Elderkin (b 1616) of Norwich, Ct.

fii. WALTER, b Somerset, 1626, d Windsor, ¢ Aug 168%; m(1) Hartford, 29 Apr 1648, Mary Stebbing, be 1630, d Windsor, 9
Aug 1689, dau Edward & Frances (Tough) Stebbing, m(2) Windsor, 22 Mar 1657/8, Sarah, dau Wm Rockwell, of Windsor,
who d 7 Aug 1683,

iv. Samuel, d Windsor, 19 Aug 1690; m(1) 4 Dec 1646, Elizabeth Hull, d 2 May 1680, dau George;, m(2) prob Mary

v. John, d Windsor, 27 Apr 1699, m Windsor, 13 Dec 1683, Mary Clark, (dau Capt Daniel?) She m(2) Jedediah Watson

7769. Ellzabeth + [ GAYLORD } (Emlg) died on 20 Jun 1657 in Windsor, Connecticut.

7770. Edward + STEBBINS (Emig) emigrated before 29 Mar 1632 from To New England. He died in 1668 in Hartford, CT.
He was married to Frances + TOUGH about 1629 in England,

7771. Frances+ TOUGH was born in 1595 in Leicestershire, She emigrated before 29 Mar 1632 from To New England. She
died in 1672 in Hartford, CT ?. Ref American Genealogist 30:193 ff (1954)

Frances Tough, b 1595, d Hartford ? Ct, 1672, dau Ralph Tough of Burrough-on-the-Hill, Leics; m(!) London, 26 Nov 1617,
Sampson Chester of Leicestershire; m(2) Bermondsey, 25 Feb 1627/28, Thomas Smith, dsp ¢ 1629, m(3) ¢ 1629, Edward
Stebbing, d Hartford, Ct, 1668; emig to New England with Edward Stebbing bef 29 Mar 1632, settling at Cambridge, then rem
to Hartford, 1636.

Issue by (1)

i. Margaret Chester, bap St Anne's Blackffiars, London, 28 Oct 1618
ii. Joanna Chester, bap St Anne's, 21 Jan 1619/20
iii. John Chester, bap St Mary Magdalen's, Bermondsey, Surrey, 23 May 1621, d Guildford, Surrey, May 1696, m ... ; had
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1. John, be 1650

2. Sampson, be 1652
iv. Abiguil Chester, bap St Mary Megdalen, 5 Nov 1623; bur there, 8 Sept 1636

Issue by (3):

v. MARY STEBBING, bec 1630, d Windsor, CT; 30 June 1657; m Hartford, 29 Apr 1648, Walter Gaylord, s Wm Gaylord of
Windsor, b Somerset, Engl, 1626, d Windsor, 9 Aug 1689, (Walter m(2) at Windsor, 22 Mar 1657/8, Sareh, d 7 Aug 1683, dau
Wm Rockwell of Windsor, and had by him at least 2 chn, Eleazer Rockwell, b 7 Mar 1661/2, m Martha Thompson, and Sarah
Rockwell, b 13 Apr 1665, m Wm Phelps). For chn of Mary Stebbing & Walter Gaylord, see own entries.

vi. Elizabeth Stebbing, be 163172, liv 1694; m(]) c1649, Robert Wilson of Windsor, d Farmington, 21 July 1635; m(2) c1658,
Thos Cadwell of Hartford, ferryman, d there 9 Oct 1694.

Children by (1), sumamed Wilson:
1. John, b 1650, d Hertford, Feb 1697/8
2. Samuel, be 1652, d Windsor, 3 Aug 1697, m Windsor, 1 May 1672,

Mary Griffin, by whom he had 7 chn, 5 surviving

Children by (2), sumamed Cadwell:
3. Mary, b 8 Jan 1659, d 9 Nov 1736; m Jeremy Diggins (or Dickens)
4, Edward, b 1 Nov 1660, d aft 1716/17
5. Lt Thomas, b 5 Dec 1662, de 1738; m 23 Sept 1687, Hannsh Butler
6. William, b 14 July 1665, liv 1673 butd y
7. Matthew, b 5 Oct 1668, d Htd, bef 30 June 1719; m 25 Mar 1605, Abig Beckley
8. Abigait, b 26 Nov 1670, m Apr 1699, John Church
9. Elizabeth, b 1 Dec 1672, liv 1694
10. Samue}, b 30 Apr 1675, d 1725, m 16 Mar 1708/09, Mary Clark
11. Hannah, b 22 Aug 1677, m Thos <3> Bliss (Samuel <2>, Thos <1>) of Springfield, MA
12. Mehitable, b 12 Jan 1679/80; m 5 Nov 1696, Samuel <3> Boardman (Isasc <2>>, Samuel <1>) of Wethersfield &

Middletown, Ct
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Daniel +...22
John+...31
Nathaniel +. .. 12
Nathaniel +, .. 14
Susanna+... 10
BARBER
Amn+...9
Joseph+...14
Ruth+...14
Samuel +...1]
Samuel +. . . 20, 21
Thomeas +...28,29

BENEDICT
Mary +...15
Thotoas + ... 23
BIRD
Prudence +...33
BISSELL
Abigail +...19
BOUTON
Bridget+...26
John+...33
BRIDGEHAM
Mary+...23
BRINSMADE
Abigail +...13
Daniel +...16
John+...24
BROWN
Mary+...8
CARTER
Meary+...25
Thomas + . .. 31
COLEMAN
Lisa+...5
COMSTOCK
Chrstopher +... 15
Marthe +, .. 10
Mosges+...12
William +...23
DOVER
Mary +...27,28
DRAKE
John+...29,30
Ruth+...21,22
ELLSWORTH
Mary +...22
ENO
Abigail +...14
James+, ., 19

Mary +... 14
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GeorgeH+...5
Marguerite +... 1
Richard A+...1
FRICK
Fredericka+...7
FULFORD
Abigail+...9
Abraham+... 14
Gershom+...11
Titus+...9
GAYLORD
Joseph+...22
Mary +...14
Welter +...30
Williem +...33
GILLETT
Am+...11
Daniel +... 14
GRISWOLD
Edward + . ..27, 28
Mary+...18,20
JACKSON
Ella Jane+...1
Thomas+...6
KELLOGG
Deniel +...25
Martin+. . . 3]
Sarah+...17
KETCHUM
Hannsh+ ... 12
Joseph+...15
LOOMIS
Daniel +...22
Mary +...14
MOORE
Hannsh +...29,30
OLMSTED
Ambrose+...10
Daniel +...12
Horace Street+...8
Jane M+...7
Jeremish +...9
John+...15
Richard +...23
OSBORNE
Elizabeth +...23
James +...31
PHELPS
Josephine M+...6
Ruth+...11
Samuel +...9
Samuel+...11
Samuel+...13
Sheldon+...8

Sheldon Erastus+...7
Timothy +...17,19
Ud+...8
William + . . . 26,27
William + ... 14
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PLATT
Hennah+...16
Richard +. .. 24

RICHARDS
Elizabeth +...15
Obadieh +...23
Thomas + . . . 31

RICHESON
Elizabeth +...12

SCHUBERT
Franklyn+...1
Frederick+...7
Hemmann C+ ., .1
Ked+...1
Richard Franz +...1

STANLEY
Sarah+...22

STEBBINS
Edward+...34
Mary+...30

STREET

+...9

TOUGH
Frances+...34

UPSON
Meary+...22
Thomss + ... 30

WELTON
Abigail +...12
John+...22
Stephen+...14

WOOD
Mary+...24

[ ANDREWS ]
Mary +...31

[ ARNOLD ]
Susanne +, .. 31

[ BARBER ]

Jane +...29,30

[ BOUTON ]
Alice...33

[ GAYLORD }
Elizabeth +. . . 34

[ SCHUBERT]
Fredericka+...5
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R. G. Windsor Spellman

28] Ridge Road, 2-B

Wethersfield, CT 06109
(860) 721-8141




